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Directors' Report




To
The Members,
Centrum Financial Services Limited,

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors are pleased to present the Annual Report along with the Audited Financial
Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Amt. in Rs. Crs.)

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, March 31, March 31,
2022 (As per 2022 (As per 2021 (As per
INDAS) INDAS) (Dis- INDAS)
(Continued Continued
Operations) Operations)
Total Revenue - 79.29 140.85
Total Expenses 3.33 78.70 138.18
Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional (3.33) 0.59 2.66
items
Exceptional Items - 5.94 -
Profit/ (Loss) after exceptional items 6.53 6.53 -
from Discontinued Operations
Less: Taxation Expenses 4.07 4.07 0.84
Profit /(Loss) after tax (0.87) 2.46 1.82
Other Comprehensive Income (0.12) (0.17) 0.03
Total Income post considering other (0.99) 2.29 1.85
Comprehensive income
Balance of profit/ (loss) for earlier (14.06) - (5.94)
years
Add: Profit for the year (0.99) 2.29 1.85
Less: Transfers to reserve*/profit or 18.08 - 9.97
loss for the year (2.77)
Balance carried forward 0.25 - (14.06)

*During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the loans and advances held by the Company
were transferred to Unity Small Finance Bank Limited, as required by the RBI License issued on
October 12, 2021.

As on the date of transfer, the Company held INR 18.08 Cr in impairment reserve as required by RBI
notification RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No. 109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13,
2020. As on March 31, 2022, the Company does not hold any loans and advances. The Company has
grouped it under retained earnings for financial year ended March 31, 2022. The Management has
also sought ratification of the same from RBI vide a communication dated March 30, 2022. This
amount shall not be available for appropriation pending ratification by RBI.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Discontinued Operations: The Gross income from Discontinued operations of the Company is X
79.29/- Crore in FY 2021-22 as against X 140.85 in FY 2020-21. The net profit for the year under
review is X 2.29/- Crore against net profit of X 1.85 Crore in the previous year.




Continued Operations: There have been no NBFC business operations in the Company post the
transfer of its business undertaking to Unity Small Finance Bank Limited i.e. November 01, 2021.
The Gross income from continued operations of the Company is X NIL/- for the period November 1,
2021 to March 31, 2022 for 5 (five) months in FY 2020-21. The net loss for the year under review
post the transfer of its business undertaking to Unity SFB X 3.33/- Crore

PERFORMANCE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) on June 18, 2021, granted an ‘in-principle approval’ to the
Company to establish a small finance bank in the private sector under Section 22 of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949. Pursuant to this, Unity Small Finance Bank Limited (“Unity SFB”) was
incorporated as a subsidiary of the Company on August 25, 2021. Further, RBI vide its letter dated
October 12, 2021 granted a banking license to Unity SFB to carry on the Small Finance Bank
business. In compliance with the conditions of the RBI license, the Company executed Business
Transfer Agreement (BTA) dated October 26, 2021, with Unity SFB for transfer of entire business
undertaking of the Company to Unity SFB via slump sale, on a going concern ‘as-is-where-is‘ basis.
Consequently, all assets and liabilities of the Company were transferred to Unity SFB w.e.f.
November 01, 2021.

There have been no NBFC business operations in the Company post the transfer of its business
undertaking to Unity SFB i.e. November 01, 2021.

As a part of the conditions for issue of license dated October 12, 2021 to Unity Small Finance Bank
Limited, the Company is required to register itself as Core Investment Company (CIC) with RBI. In
compliance of the same, the Company has already applied for conversion of the Company from
Systemically Important- Non Deposit Accepting- Non Banking Financial Company - Investment and
Credit Company, into a Core Investment Company. The approval from RBI is awaited.

During the year Centrum Retail Services Limited (CRSL) has transferred its entire shareholding in the
Company to Centrum Capital Limited (CCL), the ultimate holding company. The Company is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CCL with effective from August 23, 2021.

RESOURCES

During the year under review, the Company has redeemed an amount of X 268.5 Crore raised
earlier in multiple tranches through private placement by way of issue of secured, listed, rated,
redeemable, non-convertible principal protected market linked debentures bearing a face value of
X 1,00,000/- each. The Company has also raised an amount of X 25 Crore in multiple tranches by
way of issue of Commercial Papers.

Pursuant to the transfer of ‘business undertaking’ of the Company to Unity Small Finance Bank
Limited (“Unity SFB”) via slump sale, on a going concern and ‘as-is-where-is’ basis, all the Non-
Convertible Debentures and Commercial Papers issued were transferred to Unity SFB w.e.f.
November 1, 2021.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves during the period under review.
SHARE CAPITAL

During the financial year under review, the authorized share capital of the Company has remained
unchanged at X 1,50,00,00,000/- and paid up capital is unchanged at X 9,89,56,942/-.




DIVIDEND

In order to conserve resources, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial
year 2021-22.

LISTING FEES

The Company’s Secured, listed, rated, redeemable, non-convertible principal protected market
linked debentures were listed on the BSE Limited. The Company had paid listing fees up to the
financial year 2021-22. Pursuant to the Business Transfer Agreement executed on 26th October,
2021, all debt securities of the Company were transferred to Unity Small Finance Bank Limited w.e.f
November 1, 2021. BSE Limited approved the delisting of Non-Convertible Debentures in the name
of the Company w.e.f. 24th December, 2021.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the Year under review the Company has incorporated following subsidiary companies:

1. Ignis Capital Advisors Limited
2. Unity Small Finance Bank Limited.

Ignis Capital Advisors Limited was transferred to the ultimate holding company of the Company, ie.
Centrum Capital Limited with effect from October 01, 2021.

Further, a Report on the performance and financial position of the subsidiaries companies and the
salient features of the financial statements in the prescribed form AOC-1 is annexed as Annexure-A.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT

There were no material changes affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of
financial year and date of report.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

M/s Shah & Taparia & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai having firm registration No. FRN
109463W were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy
caused due to resignation of M/s. Haribhakti & Co LLP, for a period of three years from the financial
year FY 2021-22 till the conclusion of the Annual General meeting of the Company to be held for
the year 2024.Pursuant to Section 141 of the Act, the Auditors have represented that they are not
disqualified and continue to be eligible to act as the Auditor of the Company.

There are no observations/ qualifications of the Auditors in their report for the FY 2021-22.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has
appointed M/s. Alwyn Jay & Co, Company Secretaries, Mumbai, to undertake the Secretarial Audit
of the Company. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is appended herewith as Annexure — B.

There are no adverse remark, qualifications or reservation in the said Secretarial Audit Report.

INTERNAL AUDITORS & THEIR REPORT

During the financial year, the Internal Audit of the Company was conducted by M/s. Pinnacle Global
Consultancy, Chartered Accounts from April 01, 2021 till September 30, 2021 and M/s F. K Mody &




Co., Chartered Accounts, from October 01, 2021 till March 31, 2022. The reports of these internal
auditors were duly deliberated, considered, reviewed or noted by the Audit Committee and the
Board meetings of the Company.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Ranjan Ghosh (DIN: 07592235) retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

There were following changes in the Board/KMPs, during the financial year under review:

1. Mr. Subrata Kumar Mitra (DIN: 00029961) resigned as an Independent Director of the Company
with effect from January 25, 2021. The Board places on record its sincere appreciation for
valuable services rendered by Mr. Mitra as an Independent Director of the Company.

2. Mr. Ranjan Ghosh (DIN: 07592235) was reappointed as a Managing Director & CEO of the
Company for a period of three years with from August 23, 2022 till August 22, 2022, his
appointment shall be regularised by the Members at the ensuing general meeting of the
Company.

As on March 31, 2022, the Company has the following Key Managerial Personnel:
1) Mr. Ranjan Ghosh — Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
2) Mr. Abhishek Baxi — Chief Financial Officer
3) Ms. Archana Goyal — Company Secretary

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND COMMITTEES

Details of meetings of the Board and Committees held during the year are set out in following table:

Particulars Board Audit Nomination & Finance
Committee Remuneration Committee
Committee
Number of 7 4 1 10
Meetings
Dates of 09.04.2021, 07.05.2021, 31.12.2021. 07.04.2021
Meetings 07.05.2021, 26.07.2021, 20.05.2021
25.06.2021, 20.10.2021, 22.06.2021
26.07.2021, 24.01.2022. 01.07.2021
23.08.2021, 27.07.2021
20.10.2021, 12.08.2021
24.01.2022. 14.09.2021
27.09.2021
18.10.2021
28.02.2022
Attendance of Directors/Committee Members
Mr. Ranjan 7 NA NA 10
Ghosh




Mr. Rishad 7 NA 1 NA
Byramjee

Mr.  Shailendra 6 4 1 10
Apte

Mr. G. S. 7 4 1 NA
Sundararajan

Ms. Dipali Sheth 7 NA 1 NA
Mr. S.K. Mitra 7 NA NA NA
Mr. Siddhartha 7 4 NA NA
Sengupta

Seven meetings of the Board were held during the financial year. The intervening gap between the
Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”).

None of the Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors had any pecuniary relationships or
transactions with the Company during the year under review, apart from receiving sitting fees for
attending board and committee meetings.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING

A meetings of Independent Directors was held on April 12, 2021 and April 08, 2022, as per schedule
IV of the Companies Act, 2013.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Prior to the transfer of business to Unity Small Finance Bank Limited, the Company had robust risk
management practice that enabled it to mitigate and manage risks in its businesses. The risk
function was structured to operate independently from the business groups. There was a risk
management framework to inform the Board/ Credit Committee/ Risk Management Committee
about the risk assessment and minimization procedures and periodical review to ensure that
executive management controls risk by means of a properly designed framework. The Risk
Management Committee of the Company met periodically wherein different aspects of probable
risks to the business were discussed at length and its mitigants are identified. Since the Company
terminated its operations w.e.f November 1, 2021 the said requirement was done away with.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENT MADE, GUARANTEE GIVEN, AND SECURITIES
PROVIDED

In terms of Section 186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meetings of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014, loans made, guarantees given or securities provided by the Company
are exempted from compliance with the requirements of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

LOAN TO PURCHASE SHARES OF THE COMPANY

During the financial year under review, the Company has not given loan to any person in its
employment to purchase shares of the Company. Accordingly, disclosures required to be made
under Section 67(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions with related parties were reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee and are
in accordance with the Related Party Transactions Policy. There are no materially significant related
party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or
other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at
large.




All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for prior approval/
ratification. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which
are repetitive in nature or when the need for them cannot be foreseen in advance. Particulars of
the material related party transactions are disclosed in the Form AOC-2 and are provided in
Annexure C to this Report.

POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Policy on Related Party Transactions is uploaded on the website of the company, viz.
www.centrum.co.in

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the
particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in a
separate Annexure D which forms a part of this report.

PARTICULARS OF DEPOSITS

The Company being a ‘Non-Deposit taking Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Company’
has not accepted public deposits during the year under review and shall not accept any deposits
from the public without obtaining prior approval of the RBI. Accordingly, the disclosure
requirements under Rule 8(5)(v) and (vi) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to the Company.

DISCLOSURES BY DIRECTORS

The Directors on the Board have submitted notice of interest under Section 184(1) and intimation
under Section 164(2).

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors have submitted the declaration of Independence, as required pursuant to
Section 149(7) of the Act, stating that they meet the criteria of Independence as provided in sub-
section (6) of the Act and are not disqualified from continuing as Independent Directors

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The constitution of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 2022, is as follows:

Sr. Name Category Designation in the
No Committee

1 Mr. G S Sundararajan Independent Director Chairman

2 Mr. Siddhartha Sengupta Independent Director Member

3 Mr. Shailendra Apte Non-Executive Director Member

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The constitution of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee as on March 31, 2022, is as

follows:
Sr.No | Name Designation Designation in the
Committee
1 Ms. Dipali Sheth Independent Director Chairperson
2 Mr. G S Sundararajan Independent Director Member
3 Mr. Rishad Byramjee Non-Executive Director Member
4 Mr. Shailendra Apte Non-Executive Director Member
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STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as on March 31, 2022, is as follows:

Sr. Name Position in the
No Committee
1 Mr. Shailendra Apte Chairperson
Mr. Ranjan Ghosh Member

No meeting of the Committee was held during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the framework of internal financial controls established and maintained by the Company,
work performed by the auditors and external agencies, the reviews performed by Management and
the relevant Board Committees, the Board, with the concurrence of the Audit Committee, is of the
opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls are adequate and effective.

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and
ability, confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and there are no material departures;

(b) they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of
the Company for that period;

(c) they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;

(f) they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

POLICY OF THE COMPANY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS,
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

The Company follows its policy on Director’s Appointment and Remuneration for Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other Employees. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is appended
as Annexure E.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Board of Directors carried out an annual evaluation of the Board itself, its Committees and
individual Directors. The entire Board carried out performance evaluation of each Directors.

The evaluation was done after taking into consideration the inputs received from Directors, setting
out parameters for evaluation. Evaluation parameters of the Board and Committees were based on
Disclosure of Information, Key functions of the Board and Committees, responsibilities of the Board
and Committees, etc. Evaluation parameters of individual Directors, the Board and Independent
Directors were based on knowledge to perform the role, time and level of participation,
performance of duties and level of oversight and professional conduct, etc.




Independent Directors in their separate meeting also evaluated the performance of Non-
Independent Directors, Chairman of the Board and the Board as a whole.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company needs to make expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as per the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules made thereunder and the
CSR Policy of the Company. A brief note on CSR Committee, CSR Activities, etc. is enclosed
herewith as Annexure F.

The Company was not required to incur any CSR Expenditure during the FY 2021-22. Further, the
Company does not have any amount outstanding to be spent towards CSR for previous years.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a vigil mechanism through its Whistle Blower Policy approved and adopted by
Board of Directors of the Company in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. During the year under review, no instances were reported to the Chief
Vigilance Officer (CVO) of the Company. As on March 31, 2022 there were no employees in the
Company.

The aforesaid mechanism is available on the website of the Company.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors
to report to the Audit Committee and / or Board under Section 143(12) of Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules framed thereunder.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

In view of the nature of activities, which are being carried out by the Company, Rules 2A and 2B of
the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988,
concerning conservation of energy and technology absorption respectively are not applicable to the
Company.

There was one outward foreign currency transaction amounting to X 41,20,350.93/- (75,000
Singapore Dollars) during the FY 2021-22.

HUMAN RESOURCE AND EMPLOYEE RELATIONSHIP

The Company initiated many employee engagement activities and structured initiatives that foster
motivation, team work and result-orientation. Special measures were taken to keep the team
together during Covid times. Employee’s safety was given primary importance and ‘work from
home’ was encouraged whenever required.

The Company has adopted “Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment
at Workplace” and has also constituted an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC).

Your Directors further state that during the period under review, there were no cases filed pursuant
to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,

2013.

As on March 31, 2022 there were no employees in the Company.




INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ADEQUACY

Based on the framework of internal financial controls established and maintained by the Company,
work performed by the Auditors and external agencies, the reviews performed by Management and
the relevant Board Committees, the Board, with the concurrence of the Audit Committee, is of the
opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls are adequate and effective.

The Company has an internal control system, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of
its operations. Testing of such control systems forms a part of the audit.

The Board wish to state that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements as
designed and implemented by the Company are adequate.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2022, in Form MGT-7 in accordance with
Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, shall be available on the website of the Company at
Www.centrum.co.in

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION

Pursuant to the slump sale of business undertaking all the employees of the Company were
transferred to Unity Small Finance Bank Limited w.e.f. November 01, 2021. Post received of consent
from all the employees, the ESOPs granted were forfeited in accordance with the Scheme. After
due approval of the shareholders the CFSL Employee Incentive Plan, CFSL Employee Incentive
Scheme — Series |, CFSL Employee Incentive Scheme — Series I, CFSL Employee Incentive Scheme —
Series 1,1 were rescinded.

Thus, as on March 31, 2022 there are no outstanding options granted by the Company. Further,
there are no employees on the rolls of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India on Board Meetings and Annual General Meetings

DEBENTUREHOLDERS RELATED INFORMATION:

a. Registrar and Transfer Agents : Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, 247 park L B Marg, Vikhroli West,
Mumbai 400 083
Tel. No. 022 —49186000
Fax No.: 022 — 49186060
Email: mumbai@linkintime.co.in

: NSDL Database Management Limited
4th Floor, Trade World A Wing, Kamala Mills
Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai — 400 013
Tel. No. 022 -4914 2700
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c. Address for Correspondence:

1. To the Company:

Registered Office:

Corporate Office:

Bombay Mutual Building,

2" Floor, Dr. D.N. Road,

Fort, Mumbai - 400001

Tel No: 022 — 22662434;

Fax No.: 022 - 22611105

Email: info@centrum.co.in;
cs@centrum.co.in

Centrum House, C.S.T. Road,

Vidyanagari Marg, Kalina,

Santacruz (East),

Mumbai - 400098

Tel No.: 022 —42159000;

Fax No.: —022 42159940

Email: info@centrum.co.in;
cs@centrum.co.in

d. Debenture Trustees

i. Beacon Trusteeship Ltd

4C & D, Siddhivinayak Chambers,
Gandhi Nagar, Opp MIG Cricket Club,
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

M +91 9969252499

Website: http://beacontrustee.co.in/

POLICIES AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

In terms of provisions of the Act and RBI regulation the Company has adopted the required policies.

GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as

there were no transaction on these items during the financial year under review:

1. Details relating to Deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3. There was no instance of non-exercising of voting rights in respect of shares purchased directly
by the employees under a scheme pursuant to section 67(3) of the Act read with Rule 16(4) of
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 and hence no information has been

furnished.

4. The Policies of the Company are uploaded on the website of the Company, viz.

www.centrum.co.in

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors express their sincere gratitude to the Reserve Bank of India, Securities and Exchange
Board of India, BSE Limited, Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Registrar of
Companies, other government and regulatory authorities, lenders, financial institutions and the

Company’s bankers for the ongoing support extended by them.
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The Directors also place on record their sincere appreciation for the continued support extended by
the Company’s stakeholders and trust reposed by them in your Company. The Directors sincerely
appreciate the commitment displayed by the employees of the Company across all levels, resulting
in successful performance during the year.

By Order of the Board
For Centrum Financial Services Limited

Ranjan Ghosh Shailendra Apte
Managing Director & CEO Non-Executive Director
DIN: 07592235 DIN: 00017814

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2022

Note: Annexures D does not form a part of printed version of this report.




ANNEXURE A
FORM AOC-1

( Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with rules 5 of the of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules , 2014.)

PART A - Summary of Financial Information of Subsidiary Company

Name of the subsidiary Company

Unity Small Finance Bank Limited

Reporting Currency

Rs. In Lacs

Reporting Period for the subsidiary
concerned, if different from the
holding company's reporting period

01/04/2021 to 31/03/2022 (Same as Holding
Company)

Exchange Rate

Paid up Equity Share Capital 70,490
Paid up Preference Share Capital 15,606
Reserves of the Subsidiary 53,141
Total Assets of the subsidiary 1,081,083
Total Liabilities of the subsidiary 888,687
Investments 277,105
Total Turnover 15,424
Profit/ (Loss) before Taxation (15,733)
Provision for taxation 772.04
Other Comprehensive income (Net of

Taxes) )
Profit/ (Loss) after Taxation (14,961)
Proposed Dividend -

% of Holding ( Notel) 51.00%

Note 1

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
For Centrum Financial Services Limited

Ranjan Ghosh
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 07592235

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2022

%age of holding is of immediate Holding Company.

Shailendra Apte
Non-Executive Director
DIN: 00017814




Alwyn Jay & Co.

Company Secretaries
[Firm Registration No: P2010MH021500] [Peer Review Certificate N0.621/2019]

Annex-103, Dimple Arcade, Asha Nagar, Kandivali (East),Mumbai 400101.
Branch Office: B-002, Gr. Floor, Shreepati-2, Royal Complex, Behind Olympia Tower,
Mira Road (E), Thane-401107 ; Tel: 022-79629822 ; Mob: 09820465195; 09819334743

Email : alwyn@alwynjay.com Website:www.alwynjay.com

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2022

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,

Centrum Financial Services Limited

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by
Centrum Financial Services Limited (CIN: U65910MH1993PLC192085)

(hereinafter called “the Company”).

Subject to limitation of physical interaction and verification of records caused
by COVID-19 pandemic restrictions, the Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate

conduct, statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's statutory registers, books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period

covering the financial year ended on 31% March, 2022, complied with the
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statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has followed

proper Board-processes and has required compliance mechanism in place to

the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed

and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on

31**March, 2022 in accordance with the provisions of:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules

made thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed

thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and
Regulations made thereunder for compliance to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External

Commercial Borrowings, as applicable;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’), as
amended from time to time - As applicable to the Company with

respect to its listed debentures -

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition
of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 - Not Applicable to the
Company;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider

Trading) Regulations, 2015;




(vi)

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable to the

Company;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 - Not applicable to the

Company;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of

Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue
and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client - Not applicable to the

Company;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2021 - Not applicable to the Company;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018 - Not applicable to the Company;

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and

Participants) Regulations, 2018.

Other specific business/industry related laws applicable to the
Company - The Company has complied with the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Non-Banking Financial Company Systematically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, Non-
Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank)

Directions, 2016, Non-Banking Financial Company Returns (Reserve




Bank) Directions, 2016 and the other applicable general laws, rules,

regulations and guidelines.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the
following: -

i. Secretarial Standards with regard to Meeting of Board of Directors
(SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India; and

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 - to the extent

applicable to Listed Non-convertible Debentures.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.

mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive Director, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried

out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful

participation at the meeting.

The minutes of the Board meetings and Committee Meetings have not
identified any dissent by members of the Board /Committee of the Board

respectively hence we have no reason to believe that the decisions by the




Board were not approved by all the directors/members present. The Minutes
of the Board meetings and Committee meetings were duly approved at the

meeting by the Chairman of the meeting.

We further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the
company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines. As informed, the Company has responded appropriately to
communication received from various statutory / regulatory authorities
including initiating actions for corrective measures, wherever found

necessary.

We further report that during the audit period the following events / actions
have taken place, having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and
standards:

1. Approval of the Board of Directors of the Company was obtained at the
Meeting held on 9" April, 2021:

a. to acquire the Bond Trading Business of Gundlupet Finance and
Investments Private Limited as a going concern on a Slump Sale and as is
where is basis, together with the transfer of the economic interest for a

consideration of upto Rs.35 Crores;

b. to incorporate a Wholly Owned Public Limited Subsidiary Company and

invest upto Rs.10 Crores in the same in one or more tranches.

2. Approval of the Shareholders was obtained at the Annual General Meeting
held on 17" August, 2021 to create, offer, issue and allot any securities on
private placement or preferential allotment basis or through other modes, for

cash or for consideration other than cash or a combination of both, at par or




at premium or at discount as may be decided by the Board, in one or more
tranches, to such persons or entities as the Board may decide so for

aggregate value /amount of funds not exceeding Rs.1000 Crores.

. Approval of the Shareholders was obtained at the Extra Ordinary General

Meeting held on 10" September, 2021:

a. to sale/ transfer the Business Undertaking of the Company to its proposed
subsidiary [Small Finance Bank (SFB)], by way of a slump sale, as a going
concern, on ‘as-is-where-is’ basis, at a consideration amounting to Rs.
316.00 Crores;

b. to invest up to Rs. 1400 crores in the proposed SFB in compliance with
the requirements of the In Principle Approval, in one or more tranches,
through any of the customary modes of investment or by subscription to
any instruments/ securities issued by the said SFB over a period of 5 years

or such extended period as may be approved by the Board.

. The Company has transferred the entire ‘business undertaking’ to the Unity
Small Finance Bank Limited “Unity SFB” (Subsidiary Company) via slump sale,
on a going concern and ‘as-is-where-is’ basis by execution of a Business
Transfer Agreement dated 26™ October, 2021. The said transfer has become

effective from 1% November, 2021.

. Pursuant to the transfer through the execution of a Business Transfer
Agreement dated 26™ October, 2021, all debt securities of the Company were
transferred to Unity SFB. The BSE Limited vide notice dated 23™ December,
2021 effective from 24" December, 2021 had approved delisting of Non-

Convertible Debentures issued by the Company.




6. Approvals of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of
Directors of the Company were obtained at the Meeting held on 31st
December, 2021 and 24th January, 2022 respectively to forfeit the entire
42,37,387 outstanding stock options issued by the Company under the CFSL
Employee Incentive Plan (“Plan”), CFSL Employee Incentive Scheme —Series |,
CFSL Employee Incentive Scheme —Series Il and CFSL Employee Incentive
Scheme -Series Il (“Schemes”) with effect from October 31, 2021 and
termination/ forfeiture of the contract through which the grants were issued
and to scrap and rescind the said plan and schemes formulated by the

Company.

7. The Company had transferred its Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company, Ignis
Capital Advisors Limited to Centrum Capital Limited, Holding Company of the
Company during the quarter ended 31° December, 2021.

Place : Mumbai ALWYN JAY & Co.

Date : 30" May, 2022 Company Secretaries
(===

Office Address : [ Jay D'Souza FCS.3058 ]

Annex-103, Dimple Arcade, (Partner)

Asha Nagar, Kandivali (East), [ Certificate of Practice N0.6915]

Mumbai 400101. [UDIN : FO03058D000423940]

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed
as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.




To

Annexure A

The Members,

Centrum Financial Services Limited

Our Secretarial Compliance Report of even date is to be read along with this

letter.

1.

The compliance of provisions of all regulations, circulars and guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(SEBI Act) and the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act,1956 (SCRA) and
rules made thereunder applicable to Centrum Financial Services Limited
(hereinafter called ‘the Bank’) is the responsibility of the management of
the Bank. Our examination was limited to the verification of records and
procedures on test check basis for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial
Compliance Report.

Maintenance of secretarial and other records under regulations, circulars
and guidelines prescribed under the SEBI Act and the SCRA and rules
made thereunder is the responsibility of the management of the Bank.
Our responsibility is to issue Secretarial Compliance Report, based on
the audit of the relevant records maintained and furnished to us by the
Bank, along with explanations where so required.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate
to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of
the secretarial and other legal records, legal compliance mechanism and
corporate conduct. Further part of the verification was done on the basis
of electronic data provided to us by the Bank due to COVID-19 Pandemic
restrictions and on test check basis to ensure that correct facts as
reflected in secretarial and other records produced to us. We believe that
the processes and practices we followed, provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial Compliance
Report.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial
records and Books of Accounts of the Bank.




5. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation
about list of applicable laws, compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and major events during the audit period.

6. The Secretarial Compliance Report is neither an assurance as to the
future viability of the Bank nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affairs of the Bank.

Place : Mumbai ALWYN JAY & Co.
Date : 30" May, 2022 Company Secretaries
Office Address : [ Jay D'Souza FCS.3058 ]
Annex-103, Dimple Arcade, (Partner)

Asha Nagar, Kandivali (East), [ Certificate of Practice N0.6915]
Mumbai 400101. [UDIN : FO03058D000423940]




ANNEXURE -C

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with

related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: NA

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. Particulars Details
1 Name (s) of the related party & nature of | Unity Small Finance Bank Limited,
relationship Subsidiary Company
2 Nature of | Transfer of the Business Undertaking of the
contracts/arrangements/transaction Company.
3 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ | NA
transaction
4 Salient terms of the contracts or | Transfer of entire business undertaking of
arrangements or transaction including the | the Company to Unity Small Finance Bank
value, if any Limited by way of a Slump sale as a going
concern, on ‘as-is-where-is’ basis at a
consideration amounting to INR 316.00
Crore (Rupees Three Hundred Sixteen
Crore only) through execution of Business
Transfer Agreement (BTA) dated October
26,2021
5 Date of approval by the Board 23/08/2021
6 Amount paid as advances, if any NA

For Centrum Financial Services Limited

Ranjan Ghosh
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 07592235

Shailendra Apte

DIN: 00017814

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2022

Non-Executive Director



Annexure —E

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
BACKGROUND

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), as amended from time to time, read with Part D
of Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations, requires the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(“NRC” / “the Committee”) to formulate a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel (“KMPs”), Senior Management and other employees of Centrum Financial
Services Limited (“the Company”) and recommend the same for approval of the Board. Further,
Section 178(4) of the Act stipulates that such policy is required to be disclosed in the Board’s Report.

Section 134 of the Act stipulates that the Board’s Report is required to include a statement on
Company’s policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of directors and remuneration for KMPs and other
employees.

1. Objectives & Applicability

The NRC and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
along with the applicable guidelines of the Listing Regulations.

The Key Objectives of the NRC shall be:

e To guide the Board in relation to the appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

e To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the
Board for further evaluation by the Board.

e To recommend to the Board on remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

e To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management rewards linked directly to
their effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

e To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented
managerial persons and create competitive advantage.

e To devise a policy on Board diversity

e To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan

Applicability:

a) Directors (Executive and Non-Executive)
b) Key Managerial Personnel
¢) Senior Management Personnel

2. DEFINITIONS




2.1. Act means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to
time.
2.2. Board means Board of Directors of the Company.
2.3. The Company shall mean Centrum Financial Services Limited
2.4. Directors mean Directors of the Company.
2.5. Key Managerial Personnel means
e Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;
e Whole-time Director;
e Chief Financial Officer;
e Company Secretary; and
e Such other officer as may be prescribed.
2.6. Senior Management means officers one level below the Executive Directors on the Board.

3. ROLE OF NRC

3.1.

3.2

Matters to be dealt with, perused and recommended to the Board by the NRC
The Committee shall:

Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director.

Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and persons who may be appointed in
Key Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in
this Policy.

Recommend to the Board, appointment including the terms and removal of Directors, KMPs
and Senior Management Personnel.

Policy for appointment and removal of Director, KMPs and Senior Management
3.2.1. Appointment criteria and qualifications

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and
experience of the person for appointment as Director with the objective of having a Board
with diverse background and experience in business, education and public service and
recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

Attributes expected of all Directors include independence, high personal and professional
ethics, sound business judgment, ability to participate constructively in deliberations and
willingness to exercise authority in a collective manner.

Appointment of Independent Directors is subject to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act
read with Schedule IV and rules thereunder and the Listing Regulations. The NRC shall check
that the proposed person satisfies the criteria of independence as stipulated under Section




149(6) of the Act and the Listing Regulations, before his/ her appointment as an
Independent Director.

No person shall be appointed as a Director, if he/she is subject to any disqualifications as
stipulated under the Act or any other law(s) for the time being in force.

b) A person shall possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he/
she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether
qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory
for the concerned position. In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the
Committee considers many factors, including general understanding of marketing, finance,
operations, management, public policy, legal, governance and other disciplines. The Board
evaluates each individual in the context of the Board as a whole, with the objective of
having a group that can best perpetuate the success of the Company’s business and
represent stakeholders’ interests through the exercise of sound judgment, using its
diversity of experience.

c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-
time Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the
person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the
approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory
statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of
appointment beyond seventy years. No re-appointment of a Whole-time Director shall be
made earlier than one year before the expiry of the current term.

In determining whether to recommend a Director for re-election, the Committee shall
consider the Director’'s past attendance at meetings, participation in meetings and
contributions to the activities of the Board.

3.2.2. Term / Tenure

a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Chairman, Managing Director
or Executive Director for a term not exceeding Three/Five years at a time. As mentioned
above, no re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of the
current term.

b) Independent Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the
Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special
resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

- No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of
ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall
not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the
Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. However, if a person who has
already served as an Independent Director for 5 years or more in the Company as on
October 1, 2014 orsuch other date as may be determined by the Committee as per
regulatory requirement; he/ she shall be eligible for appointment for one more term of 5
years only.




- At the time of appointment of Independent Director it shall be ensured that the number
of Boards on which such Independent Director serves as an Independent Director is
restricted to seven listed companies and three listed companies in case such person is
serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may be
prescribed under the Act.

3.2.3. Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMPs and
Senior Management Personnel at regular interval (Yearly).

A. Non-Executive Directors/ Independent Directors:

The NRC shall carry out evaluation of performance of Non-Executive Directors/ Independent
Directors every year ending March 31st on the basis of the following criteria:

1. Number of the Board/ Committee meetings attended

2. Contribution during the Meetings.

3. Informal Interaction with the Management

4. Active Participation in strategic decision making

5. Inputs to executive management on matters of strategic importance

B. Executive Directors
The Committee shall carry out the evaluation of every Executive Directors, on a yearly basis.
C. Senior Management/ KMPs/ Employees

The Human resource (“HR”) Department shall carry out the evaluation of the senior
management/ KMPs/ employees, every year ending March 31st, with the Department
Head(s)/ Management concerned. Key Responsibility Areas (“KRAs”) shall be identified well in
advance. Performance benchmarks shall be set and evaluation of employees shall be done by
the respective reporting Manager(s)/ Management to determine whether the set
performance benchmarks are achieved. The payment of remuneration/annual increment to
the aforementioned persons shall be determined after the satisfactory completion of
evaluation process.

The HR Department of the Company is authorized to design the framework for evaluating the
EDs/KMPs/Senior Management Personnel/Employees.

The objective of carrying out the evaluation by the Company shall be to identify and reward
those with exceptional performances during any financial year. Training and Development
Orientation programs on a need basis shall be provided to employees, whose performance
during any financial year does not meet the benchmark criteria.

3.2.4. Removal

Due to reasons of any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable
Acts, rules and  regulations thereunder, the  Committee may recommend, to the
Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior
Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and
regulations.




3.2.5. Retirement

The Director, KMPs and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable
provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board shall have the
discretion to retain the Director, KMPs, Senior Management Personnel in the same
position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the
benefit of the Company.

3.3. Policy relating to the Remuneration for the KMP and Senior Management
Personnel

3.3.1. General:

a) NRC while determining the criteria for remuneration for Directors, KMPs/Senior
Management and other employees ensures that:

e the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate personnel of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

e relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

e remuneration to Directors, KMPs and Senior Management involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

b) The remuneration /compensation /commission etc. to the Executive Directors, KMPs
and Senior Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee and
recommended to the Board for approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission
etc. shall be subject to the prior/ post approval of the shareholders of the Company and
Central Government, wherever required.

c) The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Whole-time Directors shall be in
accordance with the percentage / slabs / conditions laid down in the Articles of
Association of the Company and as per the provisions of the Act.

d) Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Whole-time
Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary
and any otheremployees for indemnifying them against any liability, the
premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable
to any such personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium
paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration.

3.3.2. Remuneration to Whole-time Directors, KMPs and Senior Management Personnel:
a) Fixed pay:

The Executive Director/ KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a
monthly remuneration as approved by the Board/ Committee, as the case may be. The
breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s contribution
to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and
approved by the Board/ Committee/ the Person authorized by the Board/ Committee
and approved by the shareholder and Central Government, wherever required.

b) Minimum Remuneration:




c)

3.3.3.

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the
Company shall pay remuneration to its Whole-time Directors in accordance with the
provisions of Schedule V of the Act and if it is not able to comply with such provisions,
with the approval of the Central Government.

Provisions for excess remuneration:

If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of
remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without
the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund such
sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company.
The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by
the Central Government.

Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:

Overall remuneration shall be reflective of the size of the Company, complexity of the
sector/industry/company’s operations and the company’s capacity to pay the
remuneration.

Independent Directors ("ID") and Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors ("NED") may
be paid sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and the committees of which
they may be members) and commission within the regulatory limits. Quantum of sitting
fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required.

Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission shall
be recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board.

Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) shall be reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate Directors aligned to the requirements of the Company (taking
into consideration the challenges faced by the Company and its future growth
imperatives). Provided that the amount of such fees shall be subject to ceiling/limits as
provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder or any other enactment for the
time being in force.

Overall remuneration practices shall be consistent with recognised best practices.

In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the Company may pay to any Director such
fair and reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the Director while
performing his/her role as a Director of the Company. This could include reasonable
expenditure incurred by the Director for attending Board/Board committee meetings,
general meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with shareholders/creditors/
management, site visits, Client Visits, induction and training (organised by the Company for
Directors) and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the
furtherance of his/her duties as a director.

4. NOMINATION DUTIES

The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:

4.1 Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and reviewing its




effectiveness;

4.2 Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, the Non-Executive Directors receive a formal
letter of appointment in accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Act;

4.3 Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation.
4.4 Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board,;

4.5 Setting a formal and transparent procedure for selecting new Directors for appointment to the
Board;

4.6 Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly reviewing the
plan;

4.6 Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of
the Company’s performance from business and compliance perspective;

4.7 Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in
office of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive
Director as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service
contract.

4.8 Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee;
4.9 Recommend any necessary changes in the Policy to the Board; and

4.10 Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board.
5. REMUNERATION DUTIES
The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:

5.1 to consider and determine the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also
bearing in mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and
motivate members of the Board and such other factors as the Committee shall deem
appropriate regarding all elements of the remuneration of the members of the Board.

5.2 to approve the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial
personnel of the Company, in line with the Policy, maintaining a balance between fixed and
incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the Company.

5.3 to delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the
Committee.

5.4 to consider any other matters as may be requested by the Board.
5.5 Professional indemnity and liability insurance for Directors and senior management.

6. MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING

Proceedings of all meetings shall be minute and signed by the Chairman of the Committee at the
subsequent meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings shall be tabled at the subsequent Board
and Committee meeting.




7. REVIEW AND AMMENDMENT

e The NRC or the Board may review the Policy annually or earlier when it deems necessary

e The NRC may issue the guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manual in
supplement for better implementation to this Policy, if it thinks necessary

e This Policy may be amended or substituted by the NRC or by the Board as and when required
and also by the Compliance Officer where there are any statutory changes necessitating the
change in this Policy.

8. COMPLIANCE RESPONSIBILITY

Compliance of this policy shall be the responsibility of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company who
shall have the power to ask for any information or clarification from the management in this regard.




1.

Annexure F

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

The Company is a part of Centrum Group, which has established ‘Centrum Foundation’, which is
registered trust and formed with the aim of providing a dedicated approach to community development
and also to fulfil Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) commitments of Centrum Group of Companies in
letter and spirit. The Group’s focus has always been to contribute to the sustainable development of
the society and environment, and to make our planet a better place for future generations.

Corporate Social Responsibility of the Company is strongly connected with the principles of
Sustainability; It believes that an organization should make decisions based not only on financial factors,
but also considering the social and environmental consequences. As a corporate citizen receiving
various benefits out of society, it is our co-extensive responsibility to pay back in return to the society
in terms of helping needy people by providing foods, clothes, etc., keeping the environment clean and
safe for the society by adhering to the best industrial practices and adopting best technologies, and so
on. It is the Company's intent to make a positive contribution to the society in which the Company
operates.

The Company’s CSR policy encompasses the Company's philosophy for delineating its responsibility as
a corporate citizen and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially useful
programmes for welfare & sustainable development of the community at large, and applies to all CSR
initiatives and activities taken up at the various work- centers and locations of the Company, for the
benefit of different segments of the society, specifically the deprived, under-privileged and differently
abled persons. It is a catalyst for social empowerment. It is the reason behind the smiles that light up a
million faces.

In accordance with the CSR Policy of the Company, the CSR initiatives are focused on the following pre-
identified areas:

o  ASSISTING CENTRUM FOUNDATION: Assisting Centrum Foundation in any CSR related activities
conducted by them.

e PROVIDING ASSISTANCE IN THE AREAS OF HUNGER, POVERTY, MALNUTRITION, HEALTH,
MEDICAL, DISASTER AND EMERGENCY RELEIF: Eradicating extreme hunger, poverty and
malnutrition, promoting preventive healthcare and sanitation and making available safe drinking
water. Providing Food, medical and other basic essentials to affected families with the objective of
easing food troubles in times of crisis.

e  EDUCATION, LITERACY, TRAINING & EMPLOYMENT: Promoting computer literacy to help bridge
the technology gap between urban and rural schools by providing better education, training and
career opportunities. Providing old/unused laptops also serve as a way to recycle E-waste.
Providing financial education and assisting in digitalization of finances.

e WOMAN & OLD AGED: promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and
hostels for women and orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centers and such other facilities
for senior citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically
backward groups.

e CSR POLICY: A detailed CSR policy was framed by the Company with approvals of the CSR
Committee and Board and is being reviewed from time to time. The CSR policy is hosted on the
Company‘s website www.centrum.co.in.
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Composition of CSR Committee:

SI. | Name of Director Designation/ Number of | Number of meetings of
No. Nature of meetings of CSR| CSR Committee
Directorship Committee held | attended during the
during the year year
1 Mr. Ranjan Ghosh Managing 0 NA
Director & CEO
2 Ms. Dipali Sheth Independent 0 NA
Director
3 Mr. Shailendra Apte Non- Executive 0 NA
Director
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 was amended vide

Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020, according to which the requirement of constitution of CSR
Committee shall not be applicable to a company, in case the amount required to be spent on CSR does
not exceed Rs. 50 lakhs. Accordingly, the Board had, at its meeting held on November 6, 2020, approved
that going forward all functions of CSR Committee of the Company will be discharged by the Board of
directors till the Company reaches a particular scale.

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by
the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

The Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board of the Company
can be accessed on the web link: www.centrum.co.in

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the
report).

Not applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, if any

Not applicable

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR (76,60,952)

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the NA
company as per section 135(5):

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or activities of the previous Nil
financial years.

(c) Amount required to be set off for the Nil
financial year, if any:

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year Nil
(7a+7b- 7c):



http://www.centrum.co.in/

7. The Company was not required to incur any CSR Expenditure during the FY 2021-22

a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

'srotal ?mou:t Total Amount transferred to| Amount transferred to any fund specified under
.pent' or the Unspent CSR Account as per Schedule VII as per second proviso to section
F_mancnal Year. | section 135(6). 135(5).
(in Rs.) Name of
the Date of
Amount. | Date of transfer. Fund Amount. transfer.
Nil
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) () (8) (9) (10) (11)

ST Name Item Local Location of the Proje] Amount | Amount | Amount | Mode of Mode of
No. of the fromthe | area project. ct allocated | spentin | transfer |Implemen{ Implementation
Project. list of (Yes/ durat] for the the redto |tation - Through

activities No). ion. | project (in | current Unspent Implementing
in Rs.). financial CSR Direct Agency
Schedule Year (in Account
Vil to the Rs.). for the | (Yes/No)
Act. project as|
per
Section CSR
State District. 135(6) (in Name | Registra
Rs.). tion
number
1 Nil
Total - -

(c)
(d)

(f)
(g)

Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Nil

Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil
Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per |NA
section 135(5)
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Not Applicable
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Not Applicable
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or [Nil
activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years |Nil
[(iii)-(iv)]




8. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year(s): Nil

9. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (Asset-wise details).

@ Date of creation or acquisition of the capital
asset(s). :

®) Amount of CSR spent for creation or Not Applicable
acquisition of capital asset:

© Details of the entity or public authority or
beneficiary under whose name such capital Not Applicable
asset is registered, their address etc:

@ Provide details of the capital asset(s) created
or acquired (including complete address and Not applicable
location of the capital asset).

Not Applicable

10. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5): Not Applicable.

By Order of the Board
For Centrum Financial Services Limited

Ranjan Ghosh Shailendra Apte
Managing Director & CEO Non-Executive Director
Chairman — CSR Committee DIN: 00017814

DIN: 07592235

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
To the Members of Centrum Financial Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the IND AS financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying IND AS financial statements of Centrum Financial Services Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the IND AS financial statements™)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid IND
AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2022, the loss and total comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the IND AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing

specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the IND AS financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAT) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the IND
AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the IND AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the IND AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the IND AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters, We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

Sr Key Audit Matter Auditors Response
No

1. Transfer of entire NBFC business to Unity | Principal Audit Procedures

Bank pursuant to Business Transfer

Agreement and consequential conversion from
NBFC-ND-SI to CIC-ND-SI

The Company has effected transfer of its business | Our procedures included the following:
to Unity Small Finance Bank Limited (‘the Bank'), . .
a subsidiary of the Company, on November 1, | Obtained and read the Business Transfer
2021. Pursuant to the aforesaid Business Transfer Agreement dated October 26, 2021.

(‘BTA”) dated 26th October 2021, the company | © Obtained and read the Notification dated
has discontinued its lending business. All Assets January 25, 2022 for approval of the scheme
and Liabilities of the company as on 31.10.2021 by the Central Government.

have been transferred to the Bank by e  Examined the accounting of the transaction in
Slump Sale. After transfer of n&AMANookS of accounts and proof of receipt of sale

ryé ; i CESE, T  \gonsiderati

company has applied for co onsideration.

-7, 7\_/
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registered as a Systemically Important- Non
Deposit Accepting- Non Banking Financial
Company - Investment and Credit Company, into
a Core Investment Company. Consequently the
company has made disclosures as applicable to
CIC-ND-SI as on March 31, 2022 — pending
approval from the RBI.

This has been identified as a Key Audit Matter due
to

¢ Significance of this matter

¢ This being the first year of conversion from
NBFC-ND-SI to CIC-ND-SI and

¢ Risk of material information relating to such
matter not getting disclosed in financial

Obtained and Examined the application dated
January 13, 2022 filed with RBI for
Registering Centrum Financial Services
Limited as the Core Investment Company.
Assessed the company’s eligibility criteria
for registration as CIC-ND-SI as per RBI
guidelines with respect to assets size of
Rs.100 Crores or more and holding not less
than 90% of net assets in the form of
investments in shares, preference shares,
bonds, debentures, debt or loan in group
companies.

Had discussion and obtained representation
from the management relating to this scheme
and status of pending approval from RBI.

statements e Examine the approval of the Board and the

Audit Committee for entering into this

transaction.

¢ Read the disclosures made in this regard in
the financial statements to assess whether the
relevant and material information have been

disclosed

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the company for the year ended 31st March 2021, included in the IND
AS financial statements, have been subjected to audit by the predecessor auditor M/s. Haribhakti & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, who has issued unmodified report dated May 07, 2021.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Information Other than the IND AS financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

‘When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management’s Responsibility for the IND AS financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these IND AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, total comprehensive mcome, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting grally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounti &gbo Qq ance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and 0131- & Hnggﬁg} ! \ng frauds and other irregularities; selection
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and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the IND AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the IND AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the IND AS financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the IND AS financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these IND AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the IND AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the IND AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the IND AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the IND AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to co ith them all relationships and other matters that may
licable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the IND AS financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order,2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid IND AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, managerial remuneration has been paid in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
AS financial statements — Refer Note 34 to the Ind AS financial statements;

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

203, Centré Point Bidg,
100} Dr. Ambegkar Road,
Opp. Bharat Mata Cinema,
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(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

i. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 1 1(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

¢. The company has not declared any dividend during the Financial Year, hence reporting in
respect to compliance under section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

For Shah & Taparia
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 109463 W

Rorcnerh Yo

Ramesh Joshi
Partner

Membership Number: 033594
UDIN: 22033594AJXXPD4437

Reg. 0. \09063\’!d
203, Centtd Point 8l gé
*100; Dr. Ameedkal Roads
Qygp. BR2I3 tata Cunema,

Date: May 30, 2022
Place: Mumbai

Latbaug, Parel-
thymbai - 40001
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Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors Report

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company
on the IND AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, we report the following:

1
a. The Company does not hold any Property, Plant and Equipment as on March 31, 2022.
b. To the best of our knowledge, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

2)

a.  The Company is a Non — Banking Finance Company, primarily engaged in the business of lending and does
not hold any inventory. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b. The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from
banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets; prima facie, quarterly returns or
statements filed by the company with such banks and financial institutions are in agreement with the books
of account of the Company.

3) The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee and security, granted loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnership and other parties, during the year.

a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made,
guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of the loans and guarantees
provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

b. AsonMarch 31, 2022 the company has no loan receivable. Accordingly, reporting in respect of schedule of
repayment of principle and payment of interest is not applicable.

¢. Ason March 31, 2022 the company has no loan receivable. Accordingly, reporting in respect of overdue
amounts is not applicable.

d.  AsonMarch 31, 2022 the company has no loan receivable. Accordingly, reporting in respect of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment is not applicable.

4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has complied with
the provisions of Section 185 and 186(1) of the Companies Act 2013 in respect to grant of loans, making
investments and providing guarantees and securities as applicable. Further, as the Company is a Non-Banking
Finance Company engaged in the business of financing, the provision of section 186 (except for subsection (1))
are not applicable to the Company.

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are
not applicable and hence not commented upon.

6) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost
records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products of the Company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

7)

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues
including, income-tax, provident fund, € 2 ance, duty of customs, goods and services tax,
professional tax, cess and other materiz gularly deposited during the year.
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No undisputed amounts payable in respect of income-tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, duty
of customs, goods and services tax, professional tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears
as at March 31, 2022, for a period of more than six months.

There are no dues outstanding with respect to, income tax, sales tax, services tax, value added tax, GST,
customs duty, excise duty on account of any dispute, except:

Name of the | Nature of dues | Amount Period to | Forum where
Statute which the | dispute is
amount relates | pending

Income Tax | Income Tax 18,62,870 | AY 2010-11 Commissioner
Act, 1961 of Income Tax

(Appeals)
Income Tax | Income Tax 61,22,030* | AY 2011-12 Commissioner
Act, 1961 of Income Tax

(Appeals)
Income Tax | Income Tax 1,84,27,952* | AY 2012-13 Commissioner
Act, 1961 of Income Tax

(Appeals)

*Net of taxes paid

8) There are no transactions relating to unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during

9)

10)

the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks, financial institutions, government or dues
to debenture holders during the year.

The company is not declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lenders.

The company has prima facie utilised the moneys raised by way of debt instruments and term loans during
the year were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short term basis have
prima facie, not been used during the year for long — term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary company.

The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in the subsidiary
company.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The company has made private placement of convertible debentures during the year. The requirements of
section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the funds raised have
been used for the purposes for which the fundgx@
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a.  Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

b. No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
during the year and upto the date of this report.

. We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year
(and upto the date of this report), while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and on the basis of relevant records and
representation, the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the IND-AS financial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

a.  Inouropinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature
of its business.

b. 'We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Act.

a. The company is required to register under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the
registration has been obtained by the Company.

b. The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

¢. The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India; however, during the financials year, it has applied for registration as a Core Investment
Company to the Reserve Bank of India.

The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

During the year, the previous auditor M/s. Haribhakti & Co. LLP resigned from being the statutory auditors of the
company pursuant to not meeting with the eligibility criteria in terms of guidance provided by circular Ref, No.
DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021 issued by the Reserve Bank of India. There were
no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditor.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and
management, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future

‘
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nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

20) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under
sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a)
and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable

For Shah & Taparia
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 109463 W

(Rosasent o

Ramesh Joshi

Partner

Membership Number: 033594
UDIN: 22033594ATXXPD4437

Date : May 30, 2022
Place : Mumbai
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Annexure B referred to in the Independent Auditors Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to IND AS financial statements of Centrum
Financial Services Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the IND AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable 1o an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Ind AS financial

statements

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

company are being made only in accordanc
and
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(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Ind
AS financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Shah & Taparia
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 109463W

Ramesh Joshi

Partner

Membership Number: 033594
UDIN: 22033594ATXXPD4437

Date : May 30, 2022
Place : Mumbai

Delhi Office : 52/74, Ramjas Road, Karol Baugh, New Delhi - 110 005.-Tel.: 011 - 2872 2222 / 33333 *E-mail : delhi@shahtaparia.com




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Note As at Asat
No. March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
ASSETS
(1) Financial Asscts
(a) Cash and cash cquivalents 3 87.31 9.627.74
(b) Bank balances other than ¢ash and cash equivalents 4 3.658.94 4.097.14
() Derivative financiat instruments s - 3.824.61
(d) Receivables
(i) Trade receivables 6 - 430.95
{c) Loans 7 - 82.312.78
(0 Investments 8 36.140.00 5.880.87
(1) Other financial assets 9 127.44 583.04
40,013.69 1,06,757.73
(11) Non Financial Asscts
Inventories
(a) Current tax assets (net) 10 - 2.207.88
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 34 - 130.67
(¢) Investment property 3 - N
(d) Property, plant and cquipment 12 - 3,467.70
(e) Right-of-use assets 12 - 3234
(N Goodwill 12 - 1.442.02
(g) Other intangible assets 12 - 168.72
(h) Other non financial assets 13 0.41 679.40
0.41 8,128.73
Total Assets 40,014.10 1,14,886.46
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
()  Financial Liabilitics
(a) Derivative financial instruments 5 - 6,482.90
(b) Payables
i) Trade payables 14
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 64.41 227.65
small enterprises
ii) Other payables 14
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and - 6.63
small enterprises
(¢) Debt securities 15 1.509.14 68.694.68
(d) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16 - 6.557.99
(&) Deposits 17 4,869.00 -
(f) Lease liabilities 33 - 32.04
(2) Other financial liabilities 18 3.786.38 1,543.47
10,228.93 83,545.36
(1) Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 10 - 89.08
(b) Provisions 19 - 105.96
(c) Other non-financial liabilities 20 26.39 821.09
26.39 1,016.13
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 21 9,895.69 9,895.69
(b} Other equity 22 19,863.09 20,429.28
» 29,758.78 30,324.97
Total Liabilities and Equity 40,014.10 1,14,886.46
See accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. &2
As per our report of even date
For SHAH & TAPARIA For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Centrum Financial Services Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No.109463 I;P‘A‘LN .
Ranjdn Ghosh
Managing Director and CEQ

Ramesh Joshi
Pariner
MembershipNo.)33594

f . DIN : 07592235 DIN: 00015814
io. 1094634 [ ko
fieg. Ho. 10

203, Cel
* 150} 0r. Amb

[a)
atré Point 8149, ‘l«
odkar Road, Abhishek Baxf?

Ogp. Bharat thata Cinema, Chief Financial Officer ; ana Goyal
Lalhavg. Pa‘e\_‘ Company Secretary
Mumbai - 408332
Mumbaij
Date : May 30, 2022




Centrum Financial Services Limited

Statement of Profit and L.oss for the year cuded 31 March 2022
(Currency : Indian Rupees in takhs)

Particulars

Revenue from operations
Other income

Fees and commission income
Total revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Finance costs

Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit/(loss) before tax before exceptional items
Exceptional itcms

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax expense:

- Cumrent tax

- Deferred tax

= (Excess)iShort provision of earlier ycars

Total tax expense

Net Profit for the year from Continuing Operations

Profit before tax for the year from Discontinued Operations
Tax expense/ (credit) of Discontinued Operations

- Current tax

- Deferred tax

- (Excess)/Short provision of earlier years

Total tax expense/ (credit) of Discontinued Operations

Net Profit for the year from Discontinued Operations
Net Profit/ (Loss) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income/ (expenses) - Continuing Operations
- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Other Comprehensive Income/ (expenses) - Discontinued Operations
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations

- Income tax relating to these itetns

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share
Face value of T10 per share

- Basic (3)*

- From Continuing Operations

- From Discontinued Operations

- Diluted (Z)*

- From Continuing Operations

- From Discontinued Operations

* Not annualised

Total EPS (Continuing and Discontinued operations)
- Basic (%)

- Diluted (%)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
No, March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
23 - .
24 - -
25 310.55 -
26 2237 -
332.91 -
(33291 -
(332.91) -
332.91) -
27 653.18 266.11
28 407.33 84.27
407.33 84.27
245.85 181.84
(87.06) 181.84
(17.21) 395
5.01 (0.99)
(12.20) 2.96
(99.27) 184.79
29
(0.03)
0.02 0.18
(0.03) -
0.02 0.18
(0.01) 0.18
(0.0n 0.18

Note: The FY 2020-21 comparatives have been restated to consider the impact of discontinued operations in accordance with Ind AS 105 - Non

Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
Statement of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes

As per our report of even date

For SHAH & TAPARIA
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 109463W

Ramesh Joshi

Tariner Reg. fo. 109!.183\‘4
Membership No 033594 203, CenteePaint Bldg,
* 100} 0r. Ambadtar Read,
harat ate Cinema,
Mumbai Dpp. Bharat ¥

Latbaug, Pasel.
Hompai - 401512

Date : May 30, 2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Centrum Financial Services Limited

"

RanjamGhosh
Managing Director and CEQ
DIN : 07592235

A, ‘
Abhishek Baxi
Chief Financial Officer

Shailender Apte
Director

DIN: ()IKV
(AA

hana Goyal
Company: Secretary



Centrum Financial Services Limited
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31,2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortisation

Interest income

Finance cost

Impairment on financial instruments

Net gain on fair value change

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category
Proceeds from Sale of Net Assets under BTA
Employees stock option provision

Gain on slump sale through BTA

Unrealised gain on option

Cash inflow from interest on loans

Cash outflow towards finance costs
Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Add / (Less): Adjustments for working capital changes
Trade receivables
Loans
Other financial assets
Other non financial assets
Other bank balances
Derivative financial instrunent
Trade and other payables
Other financial lability
Interest accrued on borrowings

Non financial liabilities and provisions
Cash used in operations

Income taxes paid (For current year under consideration taxes paid includes DTA transferred by way of slump sale)

Net cash used in operating activities -A

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill
Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Payment as capital advance

Purchase of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities - B
Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Proceeds from deposits & borrowings (other than debt securities)
Repayment of deposits & borrowings (other than debt securities)

Payment of lease liabilities
Net cash generated from financing activities - C

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Reg. No. 109463w
. 203, Centré Point Bidg,
108; r. Ambedkar Road,
Opp. Bharat Mata Cinema,
Laibaug, Parel.
Mumbai - 400012,

For the year ended
March 31,2022

320.27

87.75
(6,661.53)

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

266.11

161.21
(10,811.17)

5,647.49 9,271.00
24.92 487.12
(159.97) (807.17)
(327.36) (419.15)
31,600.00 ;
(587.39) 171.98
(594.26) :
(1,033.22) (1,278.33)
6,754.84 10,724.30
(2,889.33) (8,743.55)
32,182.21 (977.65)
430.95 (430.95)
4,400.37 2,102.09
(610.28) 489.35
(48.61) (38.82)
(1,034.56) (1,874.38)
2,842.70 2,173.54
484.55 (4.04)
2,512.97 400.87
0.00 (0.00)
(153.97) 167.28
41,006.33 2,007.29
109.77 (168.31)
41,116.10 1,838.98
(3,904.24) (21.59)
250.00 (250.00)
(33,401.56) (1,495.01)
3,146.79 1,095.17
(33,909.01) (671.43)
(13.39) 43,885.46
(3,654.74) (27,966.99)
6.931.14 6,764.12
(1,467.75) (19,212.60)
9.24) (20.70)
1,786.03 3,449.30
8,993.09 4,616.85




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Statement of Cash Nows for the year ended March 31,2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars

Cash and cash cquivalent as at the beginning of the year
Less : Balance transferred through slump sale

Cash and cash cquivalent as at the end of the year

Notes:
i) Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents included abave
Particulars
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 3)
Less: Bank overdrafl (refer note 16.4)
Total
ii) Non Cash Investing Activity
Particulars

Impact on fair valuation on net assets acquired through business combination

Acquisition of right of use asscts (refer note no 11)

Total

Particulars
Interest Received
Interest Paid

For the year ended
March 3, 2022

For the year ended
March 31,2021

8.203.15 3.587.25
(17.108.806) -
87.31 §.203.15
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
87.31 9.627.74
- (1,424.59)
87.31 8.203.15
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
6,754.84 10,724.30
(2,889.33) (8,743.55)

ii) Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™ as specificd in the Companies {Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

See accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date

For SHAH & TAPARIA
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 109463

Reg, Ny, 10
Ramesh Joshi . 203, gCenne’Pg;ng‘Xig
Partner 160, 0. Amegu Rvad,
MembershipNo.033594 87p. Bharat Bita Cinems,
Laibaug, Parel,
Mumbai - 46: 512,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Centrum Financial Services Limited

A

Ranjan Ghosh
Managing Director and CEO
DIN : 07592235

Y

Chief Financial Officer

Shailendra Apte
Director
DIN: 00017814

U"y
Con

\pany Secretary
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements a3 2t snd for the year eaded March 3, 2022

(Currency @ Indian Rupees in lakhs)

2.1

2.la

2.le

2.1d

Background

Centrum Financial Services Limited (the ‘Company’) is a Company domiciled in India and incorporated on 27 January 1993 under the provisions of the
Companics Act, 1956, The Company has received a centificate of regisiration from the Rescrve Bank of India (RBI) on 14 August 2009 to carry on the
business of Non- Banking Fi ial Institution CNBFCY) activities without aceepling public deposits having reyistration number - 8:13.01946,

The entire business of this Company (Defined as a Business Undertaking) was sold on an “as is where is basis® as a going concern to Unity Small Finance Bank
Ltd. (Unity Bank) on and with cffect from | November 2021 vide a Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) dated 26 October 2021, Pursuant to this, all the assets
and liabilities relating to the Lending business as on the date of BTA along with all the associated risk and rewards were transferred to the Unity Bank against
their shares. As per the RBI - licence condition, the Company would be registeres as a NBFC - Core Investment Company afler the transfer of its business to
Unity Bank. Conscquently, post the BTA, the Company has applied to RB! for conversion of the r gi ion as Sy ically lmportant- Non Deposit
Accepting- Non Banking Fi ial Company - Inv and Credit Company, into a Core Investment Company.

The Company is registered with Ministry of Corporate Atfairs (MCA) having Corporate Identification number (CIN) - U659 10MH1993PLC 192085,

The registered office is situated at 2nd Floor, Boinbay Mutual Building, Dr. D.N. Road, Fort, Mumbai-$00001.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 were approved for issue in accord with the lution of the Board of
Directors on May 30, 2022,

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ins As)

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companices Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companics (Indian A ing Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) issucd by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred by section 133 read with sub-section (1) of section 210A of the Companies Act, 2013. In addition, the guidance
notes/announcements issucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied along with pli with other y
promulgations require a different treatment. Any application guidance/clarifications/ directions issucd by RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when

they are issued/ applicable.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been preparcd on the historical cost basis except for the certain financial instruments which have been measured at fair value,
assets held for sale measured at fair value less cost to sell, net defined benefit liability/assets and share based payments.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

» Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access at reporting date

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1. that arc observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly: and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities

Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division ! to Schedule 11l to the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) applicable for Non- Banking Finance Companies (“NBFC”). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented
as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Bal Sheet and S of Profit
and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule 111 to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required
10 be disclosed under the notified Ind As.

A in the fi ial are pr d in Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded off to nearest Rupee as permiticd by Schedule 11 to the Cc panies Act,
2013. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupee to two decimal places.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and depreciation
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and equipment recognised as at Ist April, 2018
measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipinent.

PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of PPE which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of PPE
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets as prescribed in Schedule Il of the Act except some cases. The
residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of tangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively.

Particulars Estimated useful life according to the Company
Office equipinents 3 Years

Computer and accessories 3 Years

Computer software 6 Years

Vehicles 8 Years

Furniture and fixtures 10 Years

Building 60 Years

Property. plant and equipment having an original cost up to INR 3,000 indixi epreciated in the year of purchase.
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Notes to the finaacial statements as at and for the year caded March 3, 2022
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21.c Intangible asscts
On ransition 10 Ind AS, the Company has clected to continue with the carrying value of all its | wible Asscts recognised as at 18t April, 2018 measured as
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the d d cost of the i ble asscts.

L

The usctul lives of intangible assets are assessed to be cither finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible assct with a finite useful life are reviewed at east at each financial year-end. Changes in
the evpected useful lite, or the cxpected pattem of ption of future benefi bodicd in the assct, are accounted for by changing the
amortisation period or ncthodology. as appropriate, which are then ireated as changes in acc ing csti The amortisation expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is prescnted as a scparate line item in the statement of profit and loss. Amortisation on asscis acquired/sold during the year is recognised on a
pro-rata basis 10 the Statement of Profit and Loss from / upto the date of acquisition/salc.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line mcthod to write down the cost of intangible assets 1o their residual values over their estimated usefil lives.
Intangible assets comprising of software are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 6 years, unless it has a shorter useful life,

Gooduwill represents excess of the cost of portfolio acquisition over the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilitics. Goodwill paid on acquisition of
portfolio is included in intangible assets. Goodwill recognized is tesied for impainnent annually and when there are indications that the carrying amount may
exceed the recoverable amount.

2.1.0  Intangible assets under development
It includes assets not ready for the intended use and are carried at cost, comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses.

2.1.g Investment property
Investinent properties are properties that are held for long-tenn rentals yields or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including tr ion costs. Subseq to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less lated depreciation and
impairment loss, if any.

Tted

Investiment propertics are depreciated ‘using the straight-line method over their useful lives. Investment properties gencrally have useful lives of 60 years, The
useful life has been determined based on technical evaluation performed by the management expert.

Though the company measures the investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of the investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair
values are detennined based on an annual evaluation.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed off or when they are permanently withdrawn from their use and no future
economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit
or loss in the period of derecognition.

2.t.h Impairment of non-financial assets
As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment property and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the PPE, investment property and intangible assets are tested
for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. Goodwill and intangible assets with indetinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication then the asset may be impaired.

tmpairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and valug in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that
reflects current market assessiments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If recoverable amount of an asset {or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such deficit is recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For this
purpose, the impairment loss recognized in respect of a cash generating unit is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to such
cash generating unit and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets of the cash generating unit on a pro-rata basis.

2.1.i Revenue recognition
Interest income
Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets
and financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL. The “effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument.

The calculation of the EIR includes all transaction cost and fees that are incremental and directly attrit to the acquisition of a fi ial asset.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortized cost of the
financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying the
EIR to the amortized cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)). The
Company assesses the collectability of the interest on credit impaired assets at each reporting date. Based on the outcome of such assessment, the Interest
income accrued on credit impaired financial assets are either accounted for as income or written off.

Income from bill discounting is recognised over the tenure of the instrument so as to provide a constant periodic rate of return.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date. It is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity. Amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Syndication fees
Syndication fees is accounted over the period as customer simultaneously receives an as the performance obligations are completed
based on achievement of milestones as per the mandates/agreement with the clients by the client.
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Fees und commission income

Fees such as consultaney fees, seferral fees and commission income include foes other than those that are an integral part of EIR and are recognised on accrual
basis based on contractual tenns. Processing fees carned on Supply Chain Finance Business is recognised on accrual basis and docs not form pant of EIR as it
being shost term in nature.

Rentul income
Rental income is recognized over a period of time as and when accrued as per the terms of the contract.

Net Guin/loss on fuir value chunges
Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair valuc through the profit or loss {refer Note 25), held by the Company on the balance
sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains on fair value changes™

under Revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed under “Exp 5" in the of Profit and Loss.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on salc of financial instruments incasured at FVTPL and debt instruments measured at FVOCI is recognised in net gain /
loss on fair value changes. As at the reporting date the Company does not have any financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt instruments measured at
FVOCL

However, net gain / loss on derecognition of fi instr lassified as amortised cost is presented scparately under the respective head in the

Statetnent of Profit and Loss.

Other operational revenue
Other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognized when the right to receive the income is
established as per the terms-of the contract.

Other income und expenses
Other income and expenses are recognised in the period in which they occur,

Leases

The Compuny as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the usc of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU™) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements
in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases,
the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these
options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised,

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior
to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are
r ed with a corresponding adj to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option. Lease liabilities are remeasured at fair value at the balance sheet date with the corresponding impact considered in the statement of profit
and loss as interest charge/ income.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor
Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a swaizht line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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2.1k Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract 1hat gives rise 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liabality or equity instrument of another catity.

Initiul recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial labilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, Regular way purchase
and sale of fi ial assets are ised on trade-date, the date on which the Company comnits to purchase or sell the asset.

Atinitial recognition. the Company measures a financial assct (other than trade reccivables) or financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, transaction costs
that are incremental and directly atiributable to the acquisition or issuc of the financial asset or financial liability (other than financial asset or financial Habitity
carried al fair value through profit or loss). Transaction costs of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Clussification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets are classificd into three categories:

« fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

+ fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or
* amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s busil model for ging the fi ial assets and the contractual terms including contractual cash flows.

For debt instruments, classification will depend on the business model in which the debt is held.

For equity instruments, classification will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable clection at the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The classification requirements of financial assels are described below:

Debt instruments
Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer's perspective.

Business model: The business modet reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, whether the Company's objective is
solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows from the sale of asset. If neither of
these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at
FVTPL. Factors considered by the Company in determining the business model for a Company of assets include past experience on how the cash flows for
these assets were collected, how risks are assessed and managed. Securities held for trading are held principally for the purpose of selling in the near term or
are part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent aciual pattern of short-term profit-taking,
These securities are classified in the ‘other' business model and measured at FVTPL. The business model assessinent is based on reasonably expected scenarios
without taking 'worst case’ or 'stress case’ scenarios into account.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractuat cash flows and sell, the Company assesses whether
the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the 'SPPI test'). In making this assessment, the Company considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit
risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement,

Based on these factors, the Company classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three measurement categories:

Amortised cost: Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where business inodel of those cash flows represents solely payment of
principal and interest ('SPPI"), and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any
expected credit loss allowance recognised and measured. Interest income from these financial assets are recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets are measured at FVOCI when the instrument is held within a business model, the
objective of which is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI
test.

FVOCI financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income (OCI). Interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at
amortised cost. On derecognition, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in OCI are reclassified to Statement of profit and loss account.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. Financial assets
designated at FVTPL are carried in the Balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value presented as other (gains)/losses in Statement of profit or loss.
Interest income on financial assets classified as FVTPL is not recognised in net gain/(loss) on fair value changes and is recognised separately as interest
income.
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Equity instrumenis

Equity instruments is a contract that cvidences residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all its liabilitics. The C ompany subsequently
measures all equily investments under the scope of Ind AS 109 at fair value. Changes in the fair valuc of these instruments are recognized in profit or loss.
Impairnment losses (and reversal of impainnent losses) on equily investments measured at FVTPL are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses on a fonwvard-looking basis the expecied credit losses (ECL) associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI,
loans and advances and on exposure arising from loan commitments. The Company recognizes a loss allowance lor such losses at cach reporting date.

The measurement of ECL reflects:

* An unbiased and probability-weighted that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes:

* The time value of money;

* Reasonable and supportable information that is available withoul undue cost or cffort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

The method and signifi jud used while puting the expected credit losses and information about the exposure at default, probability of default
and loss given default have been set out in note 45B (Risk Management).

Write-off policy
The Company writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery.

Financiul liubilities
Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are classified at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: This classification is applied to derivatives

and financial liabilities held for trading and other fi ial liabilities designated as such at initial recognition.

Gains or losses on fi ial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are presented partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability, which is determined as the amount that is not
attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise to market risk) and partially profit or loss (the r ining of change in the fair value of the
liability).

Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished i.c. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Reclussification of financial instrument
The Company reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its busi model for ing those assets changes. The reclassification takes place from the
start of the first reporting period following the change. Such changes are expected to be very infrequent.

After initial recognition, equity instruments and financial liabilities are not reclassified.

Derivatives
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently measured at fair value.

Embedded derivatives

The embedded derivatives are treated as separate derivatives when:

+ their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract;
* a separate instrument with the same terms would meet the definition of a derivative;

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non- derivative host contract, with the effect that some of the
cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a standalone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that
otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to an index of prices or rates or other variable. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss.

These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the
Company chooses to designate the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.

Certain market linked non-convertible debentures (MLDs) issued by the Company have returns linked to non- interest related benchmarks. Embedded
derivative component of such debentures are separately accounted for at fair value and host contract. The Company hedges the risk of variable payout by
taking positions in futures & options of Nifty 50 Index. Further, the fair valuation of the MLDs for initial recognition of embedded derivatives and borrowings
components as at the date of issue is done considering adjustment to the put/call contracts of Nifty 50 Index, thereby armiving at cost of borrowings. Any
gain/loss on these hedge positions are netted against with interest expenses on MLD and resultant net loss/gain is recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss
after considering the mark to market position of the options at the balance sheet date.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds
After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on issue funds, and transaction costs that are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR).
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Finuancial guarantees

Financial g are initiatly gnised in the financial statements at fair value, being the premium reccived. Subseq to winal recognition, the
Company’s liability under cach guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less cumulative amottisation recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

The premium is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.

Fair vilue measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as investinents and derivatives at fair values at cach Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordesly transaction between market participants al the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the p ption thal the tr ion ta sell the asset o transfer the liability takes place cither:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b} In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability, The principal or the nost advantageous tarket must be
accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming thal
market particip act in their ec: ic best interest.

A fair value of a non-fi ial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate econotnic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market panticipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities (for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the fi ial ) are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Jiabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest levet input that is signiticant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly obsenvable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company detenmines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valuc measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

The Manag d ines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial
assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for disposal in discontinued operations.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the
Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, short-term deposits and highly liquid investiments with an original maturity of three months or
less, which are readily convertible in cash and subject to insigniticant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafis are shown within borrowings in current liabilities
in the balance sheet.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method. Borrowing costs net of any investment income from the temporary
investiment of related borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of cost of such
asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plun

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the
year when the contribution to the fund is due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the fund.

Dcfined Benefit Plan

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using Projected
Unit Credit Method made at the end of the financial year. The Company makes contribution to a scheme administered by an Insurance Company approved by
the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI) to discharge the gratuity liability to the employees. The Company records its gratuity
liability based on an actuarial valuation made by an independent actuary as at the year end. Provisions made for the funded amount are expensed in the
statement of profit and loss.

Reneasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized directly in the other comprehensive
income in the period in which they ocecur. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in the subsequent periods.

Long term compensated absences

The Company’s Habilities towards compensated absences to employees are accrued on the basis of valuations as at the balance sheet date, carried out by an
independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial zains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions and are recognized i diately in the of profit and loss. The Company presents the provision for compensated absences under

provisions in the balance sheet.




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 3, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

21.p

214

2.1r

2.1

Income tax
The income tax cxpense or credit for the period is the 1ax payable on the current period's 1axable income based in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961
adjusted by changes in deferred tax asscts and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and 1o unused tax losses.

Current tux
The current incomne tax charge is calculated based on the tax laws d or sub ively d at the end of the reporting period. Manag penodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situati in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where

appropriate based on amounts expected to be paid to the lax authorities.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics in the Balance Sheet and the corresponding tax bascs used in
the compulation of 1axable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary ditferences. Deferred 1ax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary diferences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ar¢ measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is setled or the assel realised, based
on lax rates (and tax laws) that have been d or sub ively d by the Bal Sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
retlects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and the Company intends o settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Goods und services tax puid on acquisition of ussets or on incurring expenses -
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services lax paid, except:

i. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

ii. When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pretax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the Fi ial S

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Employee stock option scheme (ESOP)

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services that are granted by the ultimate parent Company are measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its esti of the ber of equity instr expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised eslimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
‘Employee Stock Options reserve’. In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting period, the Company treats each instalnents as
a separate grant, because each instalment has a vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs. In situation where the stock option expires
unexercised, the related balance standing to the credit of the Employee Stock Options Outstanding Account is transferred within equity.
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Notes to the financial statcmeats as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022
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2.2.b

Significant ing judg , estimates and pti

The preparation of the Comnpany's financial tequires 2 10 make judy i s and ptions that attect the reported amounts of
Tes enues, expenses, assets, liabilitics, the accompanying disclosures including the disclosure of contingent habilitics. Uncertainty aboul these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be ble under the cire ces enisting when
the financial statements were prepared. The estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounling cstimates is
recagnised in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any fulure year af¥ected.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Company’s acc ing policics, 2 has made the following judy! i and pli which have
significant eftect on the gnised in the fi ial

* Fuir value ement of fil iul instr ’

Fair value is the price thal would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitics recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using appropriate valuation techniques. The inputs for these valuations are taken from observable sources where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judy is required in blishing fair values. Judg, include iderations of various inputs
including liquidity risk, credit risk, volatility etc. Changes in assumptions/judgmnents about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments. For further details about determination of fair value refer note 42A.

* Impairment of finunciul usscts using the expected credit loss method

The impainnent provisions for financial assets are based on assumplions about risk of default, expected loss rates and loss given defaults. The Company uses
judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company's history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of cach reporting period. For further details about ptions used in calculating expected credit losses and the
sensitivity of assumptions refer note 428,

* Business maodel assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the Solely for payment of principal and interest (SPPI) test and the business model
test The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how C pany’s of fi ial asscts are d together to achieve a particular
business objective. This includes judg, used by the Company in determining the business model including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed. The Company monitors financial
assets that are derecognised prior 1o their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the
business for which the asset was held.

» Income taxes
Significant judgments are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including
amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions. For further details refer note 28.

 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions and contingencics are recognized when they become probable and when there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or
events and the outflow of resources can be reliably estimated. The tining of recognition and quantification of the provision and liability requires the application
of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which are subject to change.

* Employee stock uption scheme (ESOP)

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using Black-Scholes Model to detenmine the fair value of the liability incurred
on the grant date. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is
dependent on the tenns and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires detenmination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including
the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

Assumptions and estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimating uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when financial statements are prepared. Existing cirr and ptions about future developments, however,

may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

* Retirement and other employee bhenefits

The cost of the gratuity and long-term employee benefits and the present value of its obligations are determined using actuarial valuation. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the future salary
increases, attrition rate, mortality rates and discount rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, the obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumnptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates for India. The attrition rate represents the Company's expected experience of empioyee
turnover. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to
demographic changes. Discount rate is based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the
liabilities.

Further details about grawity and Jong term employee benefits obligations are provided in note 40.

s Effective interest rate
The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cagh

receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
gt allowance) or to the amortised cost of a financial lability. This
{fe-cycle of the instruments and other fee income/expense that
are integral parts of the instrument.
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Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
3. Cash and cash cquivalents
a) Cashon hand - 0.75
b) Balances with Banks -
i) in current accounts 87.31 9,626.99
Total 8731 9627.74
Note :

Short term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requircments of the
Company, and cam interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Company has taken Bank overdraft facilitics, therefore, cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement is not same as cash and cash
cquivalent given above.

4. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Other Bank balances
a)} In fixed deposit accounts

i) Fixed deposit accounts with maturity more than 3 months - 411.65

ii) Fixed deposits pledged for Bank overdraft Facility - 250.00

b) Eanmarked balance held with bank's * 3,658.94 3,435.62
3,658.94 4,097.27

Less: Impairment allowance on Fixed deposits - 0.13
Total 3,658.94 4,097.14

Note: Fixed deposits and other balances with banks eamns interest at fixed rate or floating rates based on dai ly bank deposit rates.
*Earmarked balance held with bank includes Cash & Bank Balances maintained on behalf of UNITY Small Finance Bank Ltd. as at 31 March
2022.

4.A Encumbrances on fixed deposits held by the Company:
Fixed deposits pledged for:
a) Bank guarantee for cash credit lines - -

b) Security deposit for PTC Securitisation
i) RBL Bank Limited - 250.00
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupeces in lakhs)

7.

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Loans
At amortiscd cost
A. Product-wise Details
a) Bills discounting - 32.318.00
b) On demand loans - 247997
¢) Term loans - 4847170
d} Others
Loan to stalf - 2.50
Total (A) - Gross - 83.272.18
Less: Impairment loss allowance - 959.40
Total (A) - Net - 82,312.78
B. Securitywise Details
a) Secured
i) Secured by tangible assets - 50.663.07
ii) Sccured by intangible assets - -
b) Unsecured - 32.609.11
Total (B) - Gross - 83,272.18
Less: Impairment loss allowance - 959.40
Total (B) - Net - 82,312.78
C. Regionwise Details
a) Loans in India
- Public sector - -
- Others - 83,272.18
b) Loans outside India - -
Total (C) - Gross - 83.272.18
Less: Iimpairment loss allowance - 959.40
Total (C) - Net - 82,312.78

. Loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors , key managerial personnel (KMPs) and the

related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are :

For March 31,2022

(a) Repayable on demand
(b) Without specifying any terms or period of payment

For March 31, 2021

(2) Repayable on demand

Type of Borrower

Promoters
Directors
KMPs

Related Parties

(b} Without specifying any terms or period of payment

s

: NIL

: NIL

Amount of loan or
advance in the nature
of loan outstanding

3,100.00

Reg. o, 109453
203, Centr# Point

km, Panal,
Whumgi ~ 400212,

Percentage to the total
loans and advances in
the nature of loans

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
3.7%
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Centrum Financial Scrvices Limited
Nates to the financial statements as at and for the yoar ended March 3, 2022

1Currency * ldian Rupees i lakhs)

Particulars Asat
March 31, 2022

8. Investments

Asat
March 31, 2021

Equity instruments - Others 36,140.00 0.63
Debt sccurities 2,355.00
Bonds and debentures (Quoted) (Refer Note 51) . .
Loans in Nature of Investment - Credit Substitute 2,893.85
Secunity Receipts -
Mutua! Funds - -
Investment in PTC - 650.79
36,140.00 5.900.27
(Less): hupairment loss allowance -, 19.40
36,140.00 5.380.87
b Investments at fair value through profit or loss
A. Investment in equity instruments, quoted
i) 10,000 cquity shares(31 March 2018: 10,000 equity shares) of - 0.63
Rs. 10 cach fully paid of Adlabs Entertainment Limited
(\) - 0.63
B. Investment in Compulsorily Convertible Debentures
i) Centrum Micro credit Limited - 2,355.00
1500 units (31 March 2019 : Nit Units, 31 March 2018: Nil)
(B) - 2,355.00
C. Investment in Pass Through Certificate
i) Pass Through Certificatc subscribed 70 - 050.79
units (31 March 2019 : Nil Units, 31 March 2018: Nif) _
©) - 650.79
I=(A+B+Q) - 3,006.42
I Investments at cost
A. Investment in equily instruments, Unquoted
i) 10,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Unity Small 35,950.00 -
Finance Bank Limited (31 March 2021 : Nijl)
(A) 35,950.00 -
B. Investment in*Share Warrants X
i) 1900 Crore share Warrant issued of Rs 0.01 paise each 190.00
(B) 190.00 -
H=(A+B) 36,140.00 -
IH Investments at amortised cost
A. Investment iu debentures, unquoted at FV of 1000
i) Jana Holdings Limited - 550.00
550 Units (31 March 2019 : 650 Units, 31 March 2018: Nil)
ii) Ramjay Homes Real Estate Private Limited - 1,925.00
2,250 Units (31 Marcli 2019 : 2000 Units, 31 March 2018: Nil)
Add: Interest Accrued and effective interest rate amortization - 418.85
A) - 2,893.85
B. Investment in Mututal fund units - -
(B) - -
I=(A+B) - 2,893.85
Total Gross Investments (1+ 11 + I1I) 36,140.00 5,900.27 ’
IV (Less): Impairment loss allowance - 19.40
Total Net Investments 36,140.00 5,880.87
Of the Above
a} Investments outside India - -
b) Investinent in India 36,140.00 5,900.27
Total Gross 36,140.00 5,900.27
(Less): Impairment loss allowance - 19.40
Total Net 36,140.G0 5,880.87
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statcments as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars

9. Other financial assets
a) Security deposits
b) Loan processing fees receivable
¢) Margin with broker
d) Other financial assets

Total
10, Current tax asscts / liabilities (Net)
10.A  Advance income tax
(Net of Provision for income tax NIL (Previous year Rs. 1,102 Lakhs)
Total
10.B  Provision for taxation
{Net of Advance tax Rs. NIL {Previous year Rs.3,193 Lakhs)
Total

11. Investment property
Particulars

A) Gross carrying amount as at beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Disposals
Adjustment*
Gross carrying amount as at end of the year

Accumulated Depreciation as at beginning of the year
Depreciation during the year
Disposals
Adjustinent*

Accumulated Depreciation as at end of the year

Net carrying amount

(A)

(B)
(A-B)

As at
March 31, 2022

127.44

As at
March 31, 2021

25.85
5.5}
202.75
34951

127,44

583.64

2,207.88

2,207.88

89.08

89.08

As at
March 31, 2022

Building

As at
March 31, 2021
Building
351095

3.510.95

113.12

* During 2020-21, management had the intent to use to property for its own business purpose & hence investment property was transferred to

PPE.

B) Amounts recognised in Statement of profit or loss for investment properties

Particulars

Rental income from Investment Property

Direct operating expense arising from Investment property that generated
rental income during the year

Profit from investment properties before depreciation
Depreciation charge for the year

Profit from investment properties after depreciation

C. Notes:
i) Contractual obligations

The Company has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investinent property. However, the responsibility for its repairs,

€ or enhanc ts is with the Company.

ii) Leasing arrangements - During 2019-20, Investient property was leased fully to tenants. Agreement provides for cancellation by either party
or contain clause for escalation and renewal of agreements. The non-cancellable operating lease agreement is for a period of 3 years, however

For the
year ended
March 31, 2022

For the
Period cnded
March 31, 2021

during 2020-21, the management had the intent to use the property for its own business purpose.

fieg. No. 109463W
203, Centeé Point Bidg,
00’ Dr. Ambedkas Road,

pp. Bharat Mata Cinema,
Lalbaug, Parel.
Mumbai - 400512
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

12,

E. Carrying Value of Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as collateral

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) Vehicles pledged against Vehicle Loan - 57.46
b} Premises pledged against Secured MLDs & Bank overdraft facility - 3,360.21

availed from Union Bank of India

. Note on Goodwill Impairment Testing

a. Goodwill
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,442.02 1,442.02
Goodwill arising on acquisitions 3,539.50 -
Transferred under BTA (4,981.52)
Balance at the end of the year - 1,442.02

b. Goodwill impairment assessment

The Company tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on an annual basis and when the circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) was determined based on the
higher of the CGU's (Cash generating unit's) fair value less costs of disposal and its value-in-use, the calculations of which
require the use of assumptions. The calculations of the value in use consider the cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using estimated growth rate. Fair value is determined by applying book value multiple.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of financing and there are no separate reportable segments identified.
However, the Company has different types of portfolios and the portfolio of Supply Chain Finance Business is considered as the

cash generating unit for the purpose of allocating goodwill.

This represents the goodwill recognised on the acquisition of Supply Chain Finance Business. The Company believes that the
carrying amount of the goodwill is recoverable based on experts' valuation report.

During the year, the Company acquired the business of Gundlupet Finance and Investments Private Limited (GFIPL) as a going
concern on a slump-sale on ‘as is where is basis’ which has generated goodwill of 3539.50 Lakhs.The Company believes that the
carrying amount of the goodwill is recoverable based on experts' valuation report.




Centrum Financlal Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in takhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2022 March M, 2021

1. Other non financial assets

a) Prepaid expenses . 115.64
b) Advance for expenses

Advance to employees - 0.02
Advance to vendors - 52.28
¢) Advance for purchase of shares - 250.00
d) Balances with statutory authoritics 0.41 261.46
0.41 679.40

Less: bmpainment alfowance - T
Total 0.41 679.40

14, Trade payables

a) Micro and small enterprises (Refer note below) - -
b) Due to related parties (Refer note : 39) 9.72 11.19
¢) Due to others 54,69 216.46
Total 64.41 227.65

Note:

The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006, has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company. For disclosure pertaining to Micro and Small Enterprises refer note No.37

14. Other payables

a) Micro and small enterprises (Refer note below) - -
b) Due to related parties - .
¢) Due to Others - 6.63

Total - 6.63

Note:

The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006, has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company. For disclosure pertaining to Micro and Small Enterprises refer note No.37

Trade payables days past due as at March 31, 2022 Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years| More than 3 years Total

year
a) |Micro and small enterprises (Refer note below) -
b} |Others -
(i) | Due to related parties (Refer note : 39) 9.72 9.72
(ii)| Due to others 54.69 54.69

c) {Disputed dues (MSMEs) and -
d) |Disputed dues (Others) -

Total 64.41 - - - 64.41
Trade payables days past due as at March 31, 2021 Less than 1 1-2 years| 2-3 years| More than 3 years Total
year

a) |Micro and small enterprises (Refer note below) -
b) {Others -
(i) {Due to related parties (Refer note : 39) 11.19 11.19
(ii)| Due to others 219.94 1.00 0.19 1.97 223.09
c) [Disputed dues (MSMEs) and -
d) |Disputed dues (Others) -
Total 231.13 1.00 0.19 1.97 234.28




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes (o the financial statements as at and for the year cnded March 31, 2022

(Curmrency : Indion Rupecs in lakhs)
Particulars As at Asat

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

15, Dcbt securities

15.1At amortised cost
A. Secured
a) Sccured Non Convertible Market Linked Debentures - privately
placed

- 37.955.56
b) Sccured Non Convertible Debentures - privately placed - 19.110.33
¢} Commercial Papers - privately placed - 805.91
d) Sccuritisation Liability - 4,302.23
\) - 62,174.03

B. Unsecured
a) Non Convertible Debentures - privately placed - 5.011.51
b} Compulsorily Convertible Debentures - privately placed 1.509.14 1.509.14
(B) 1,509.14 6.520.05
Total (A + B) 1,509.14 68.694.68

Of the Above
i) Debt securities in India 1.509.14 68,694.68

i) Debt securitics outside India - -

Total 1,509.14 68.694.68

15 Security Details
i) Non Convertible Debentures and Commercial Papers are secured against reccivables of the Company.
ii) Above mentioned Market Linked Debentures are secured against first pari passu charge over present and future
receivables with minimum security cover of 100 percent of the issucd amount and identified immovable property.
iit) Securitisation liability is secured by supply chain reccivables and cash collateral

15 Terms of Repayments of Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCD)
i) The above CCD's are unrated unlisted unsecured debentures carrying 10% coupon rate to be paid annually over the
tenure of 5 years.
i) Conversion Event:
The earlier of:
a) Expiry of the tenor of Comnpulsorily Convertible Debentures; or
b) At the option of the holder of the Compulsorily Convertible Debentures by issuing a notice of 7(seven) working days
to the Company.

=




Centrum Financial Scrvices Limited
Notes 1o the financial statements as 3t and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency . Indian Rupcecs in Laikhs)

I8 Debt securities - (Continned)

March 31,2022 - NIL
Current Year Dedt Securities transfererd under BTA on November 1, 2020 refer Note |

154 A Terms of repay ment of MLD 13 on March 31,2021
¥

ar Quoted / Asat

i Type 1SIN Unquoted March 31, 2021 Current Non-Current Issue Date Date of Maurity
ML - INE2HROITHN  Quoted . HR5.00 HXS.00 - OR-Oct-19 12-May-21
ML INE2HROT0  Quoted N2 2y - 22-Nov-19 12-May-21
ML - INE2HRO7900  Quoted 222 9222 - 29-Nov-19 12-May-21
ML - INE244ROT900  Quoted 2UH.06 204.06 - 23-Jan-20 12-May-21
ML - INE234ROTY0  Quoted 205.06 205,06 - | 1-Feb-20 12-May-21
ML - INE244RU79IX  Quoted 125.00 125.00 - 29.Apr-20 11-Sep-21
ML - INE2HROTSRS  Quoted 755.00 755.00 - 20-Jun-19 28-0ct-21
ML - INE244RO79IX  Quoted 684,90 684.90 - 18-May-20 03-Jan-22
ML - INE244R07918  Quoted 635,00 6R5.00 - 1%-May-20 03-Jan-22
ML - INE2#4RO7918  Quoted 527.%4 52784 - 1%-May-20 03-Jan-22
ML - INE244RO791%  Quoted RRIP RRIRLS - 18-May-20 03-Jan-22
ML - INE244RO7827  Quoted 1.955.00 - 1.955.00 02-Nov-18 12-May-22
ML - INE244R07827  Quoted 257.01 - 257.01 12-Dec-I8 12-May-22
ML - INE244R0O7835  Quoted 1.315.00 - 1.315.00 05-Dec-18 14-Jun-22
ML - INE244R0O7843  Quoted 1.893.00 - 1.%93.00 25-Jan-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 2.342.68 - 2,}42.68 31-Jan-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 536.93 - 536,93 06-Feb-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R0O7843  Quoted 1 483,82 - 1,483.82 2X-Feb-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 207.73 - 207.73 15-Mar-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted - 1,135.24 - F135.21 26-Mar-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted . 560.74 - 560.74 12-Apr-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 25793 - 257.93 30-Apr-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 206.44 - 206,44 (2-May-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 879.27 - 879.27 24-May-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244RO7843  Quoted 625.08 - 625,08 07-Jun-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 26599 - 265.99 12-Jun-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 630.35 - 630.35 27-Jun-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R0O7843  Quoted 210.24 - 210.24 12-hik-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 417.66 - 417.66 25-Jul-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 701.3%8 - 701.38 3-Jul-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 31533 - 31533 02-Aug-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 697.87 - 697.87 22-Aug-1Y 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244RO7R43  Quoted 57249 - 572.49 29-Aug-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 633.26 - 633.26 12-Sep-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 93.37 - 93.37 01-Oct-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 174.60 - 174.60 18-Oct-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 107.98 - 107.98 25-Oct-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 343.39 - 343.39 20-Dec-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R07843  Quoted 3301 - 338.01 24-Dec-19 04-Aug-22
ML - INE244R0O7868  Quoted 1.594.00 - 1.594.00 24-Apr-19 OF-Nov-22
ML - INE244R07868  Quoted 568.00 - 568.00 30-May-19 01-Nov-22
ML - INE244R07868  Quoted 205.00 - 205.00 26-Jun-19 01-Nov-22
ML - INE244R07868  Quoted 177.27 - 177.27 17-Jui-19 01-Nov-22
ML - INE244R07868  Quoted 275.00 - 275.00 t6-Aug-19 01-Nov-22
ML - INE244R07918  Quoted 2,540.00 - 2.540.00 27-Nov-20 16-Dec-22
ML - INE244R07918  Quoted 780.34 780.34 11-Dec-20 16-Dec-22
ML - INE244R07918  Quoted 2.639.52 2,639.52 18-Dec-20 16-Dec-22
ML - INE244R07918  Quoted 2,195.23 2.195.23 30-Dec-20 16-Dec-22
ML - INE244R07918  Quoted 202.20 202.20 04-Jan-21 16-Dec-22
ML - INE244R07892  Quoted 597.00 - 597.00 26-Sep-19 28-Apr-23
ML - INE244R07892  Quoted 200.40 - 200.40 30-Oct-19 28-Apr-23
ML - INE244R07892  Quoted 262.96 - 262.96 20-Nov-19 28-Apr-23
ML - INE244R07918  Quoted 370.00 - 370.00 15-Nov-19 24-May-23
ML - INE244R07918  Quoted 269.67 - 269.67 25-Nov-19 24-May-23
ML - INE244R07918  Quoted 401.32 - 401.32 28-Nov-19 24-May-23
ML - INE244R07918  Quoted 150.00 - 150.00 30-Apr-20 08-Nov-23
ML - INE244R07918  Quoted 235.00 - 235.00 08-May-20 16-Nov-23
ML - INE244R07918  Quoted 28188 - 281.88 08-May-20 16-Nov-23
ML - INE244R0O7918  Quoted 150.57 - 150.57 08-May-20 16-Nov-23
Total 38,179.86 4,926.75 33,253.11
Add: Commission amortisation (6,962.08)

Add: Interest accrued 6,737.78
Total
Note:

i) The abeve mentioned debentures are secured, unlisted and fisted, rated and unrated. non-convertible. principal protected, market linked debentures
carrying variable interest rate which is finked to performance of specified indices over the tenure of the debentures. Hence, the interest rate/range canriot be

ity The Company had raised Rs. 11,529 Lakh (Previous Year Rs. 24.094 Lakh) secured. redeemable. non-cumulative. unlisted. unrated, non-convertible,
principal protected Market Linked Debentures bearing a face value of Rs. 100.000 each by way of' private placement.




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)
15 Debt securities - (Continued)
15.8  Secured Non Convertible Debentures - privately placed

Terms of Repayment - As at March 31, 2021

Particulars Rate of Interest Repayment Details Amount
24-36 months 10.60%] Bullet Repayment 1.000.00
12-24 months 9.95%- 10% JQuarterly & Bullet Repavinents $.125.00
Upto 12 months 10%-10.25% | Quarterly & Bullet Repayments 9.985.33
1911033
Sccurity Details
Non Convertible Debentures are secured against reccivables of the Company.
15.6  Commercial Paper
Terms of Repayment - As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Rate of Interest Repayment Details Amount
Commnercial Paper Issued 7.74% 10 7.75%] 1 1-12 Months 850.00
Less: Unamortised Discount (44.09)
805.91
15.7  Securitisation Liability
Terms of Repayment - As at March 31, 2021
Tenure Rate of Intercst Repayment Details Amount
12 months 8.25%- 11% In('erc'sl lSV payable on Momhly basis & 4.302.23
principal is payable on Maturity
4,302.23
15.8  Unsecured Non Convertible Debentures - privately placed
Terms of Repayment - As at March 31, 2021
Tenure ( From the date of the Rate of Interest Repayment Details Amount
Balance Shect)
More than 48 Months 12% Bullet Repayment 5.000.00
Upto 12 months 12% Annually 11.51
5,011.51
159  Compulsorily Convertible Debentures
Terms of Repayment - As at March 31, 2022
Tenure ( From the date of the Rate of Interest Repayment Details Amount
Balance Sheet)
More than 48 Months 12% Bullet Repayinent 1,509.14
1,509.14
Terms of Repayment - As at March 31, 2021
Tenure ( From the date of the . .
Balance Sheet) Rate of Interest Repayment Details Amount
More than 48 Months 12% Bullet Repayment 1,509.14

1,509.14




Centrum Financial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupecs in lakhs)

16. Borrowings (other than debt securitics)

A Borrowings At amortised cost
1 a) Term Loans (Securcd)
i) from banks
ii) from others
b) Repayable on demand (Secured)
i) Bank Overdraft
i1) Others

Total
Of the Above
11 i) Borrowings in India
i) Borrowings outside India
Total

16. Details of sccurity and terms of repayment

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

- 4.802.21
. 13119

. 1.424.59

- 6.557.99

- 6.557.99

- 6.557.99

i) Loans from banks and others are secured against the remaining receivables of the Company and Moveable Assets of the Company
ii) Loans from certain banks & financial institutions are secured against specific receivables of the Company.
iii} Bank Overdraft are secured against Fixed Deposits and building under PPE

16. Term loans from banks -Secured

Terms of Repayment - As at March 31, 2021

Tenure ( From the date of the

Rate of Interest
Balance Sheet)

Amount

Repayment Details
pavm ' Rs. In Lakhs

36-48 months 10.50%-10.90%
24-36 months 10.50%-10.90%
12-24 months 10.50%-10.90%
upto 12 months 9.15% - 11.10%

Add: Effective interest rate amortisation

Quarterly Instalments 1.761.05
Quarterly Instalments 844.59
Quarterly Instalments 799.59
Monthly & Quarterly Instalments 1.676.97
5,082.20
(280.00)

4,802.21




Centrum Financial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and (or the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupecs in lakhs)

16. Term loans from Others -Sccured

Terms of Repavment - As at March 3, 2021

19. Provisions

Tenure ( From the date of the Amount
£ Repayment Details
Batance Sheet) Rate of Interest cpayment Details Rs. In Lakhs
12-24 months 9.53% Monthly & Bullet Repayment 41.73
upto [2 months 6.85%-9 53% Monthly 289.52
331.25
Add: Effective Interest rate amortisation (0.06)
331.19
Details of sccurity
i) Loans Repayable on Demand are secured against shares
16. Bank overdraft
Terms of Repayment
Particulars Rate of Interest Repayment Details As at
" pa March 31, 2021
Bank overdraft 9.25% 12 months 1.424.59
Total 1,424.59
17. Deposits - At amortised cost
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Intercorporate deposits (unsecured) - -
Repayment Terms of Deposits
As at As at
Particulars Rate of Interest Repay t Detail
i Ate of Interes cpayment Details March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Public Deposits - -
Deposits from Banks - -
Deposits from Others - -
a) Intercorporate Deposits (unsecured)  10% to 13.0% On Demand 4,869.00 -
Others - -
Total 4,869.00 -
18. Other financial liabilities
a) Security deposits - -
b) Excess money received - -
b) Payable on the accounts of assignments - 93.80
c) Payable to anchors - -
d) Other financial liabilities ~ 3,786.38 1,449.68
Total 3,786.38 1,543.47
~ For 31 March 2022 Other Financial Liabilities includes bank balances maintained on behalf of UNITY
a) Provision for employee benefits
i}  Gratuity (Refer Note : 40) - 65.74
ii) Compensated absences - 16.81
iii) Others - 20.27
b) Provision for undrawn commitments - 3.14
Total - 105.96

Reg. No. 109463
203, Centréd Point BIY.
* 100! Or. Arbedkar Road,
Opp. Bharat Mate Cinema,
taihaug, Parct.
Hhumbiai - 455012




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

9.1

20.

Loan Commitments

Credit quality of exposure

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company's internal credit
rating system and year-cnd stage chassification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances. Details of the

Company’s internal grading system are explained in Note 43 B 2

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars
Stage 1 Collective

As at March 31, 2021

Stage 1t Collective

Internal rating grade

Performing
High grade - 1,207.39
Total - 1,207.39

An analysis of changes in the gross camying amount and the cotresponding ECL allowances in relation to other undrawn loan

commitments is, as follows:

Gross exposure reconciliation

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Stage 1 Stage 1
Opening balance of outstanding exposure 1,207.39 1,834.85
New exposures - 1,207.39
Exposures derecognised or matured/repaid (excluding write (1,207.39) (1,834.85)
offs)
Closing balance of outstanding exposure - 1,207.39
Reconciliation of ECL balance in relation to other undrawn loan commitments is given below:
Year ended Year ended
Particul March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
articulars General approach General approach
Stage 1 Stage 1
ECL allowance - opening balance 3.14 4.50
New exposures - 3.14
Exposures derecognised or matured (excluding write offs) (3.14) (4.50)
ECL allowance - closing balance - 3.14
Other non-financial liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) Advances fromn customers - 300.69
b) Statutory dues payable ) 26.39 188.96
c} Undisbursed processing fees ' - 11.30
d) Unearned discounting chargeg - 320.14
Total 26.39 821.09




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes fo Ihe financial siatements as at and for the year roded March )9, 2012

(Currency : indian Rupees i likhg)
21, Equity share capltal

a) Share caplial authorised, lssued, subscribed and paid up

As a8 March M, 2022 As at March M, 2020
Particulars
No, of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Authorised:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach 15,0000 000 1500000 15,080,000 15,000,060

15,00,00,000 15,0000 15,00,00,000 15,000.00

issued, Subscribed & paid up:

Equity Shares of Rs, 10 cach Y.X9,56 900 9.898.69 9.X9.56,H4) Y XY3.69
9.89.26,900 9.X25.6Y 9,89.86.900 Y.X958.69
e e e ———————en. e ——§——e————————

b) Reconciliations of the number of equity shares and share capital :

As at March 31,2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Issued, Subscribed & paid vp:
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 9,89.56,900 9.895.69 9.89.56.900 9.XY5.69
Add: Shares issued during the year ) - - - .

Outstanding at the end of the year 9,89.56.900 9,895.69 9.89.56,900 9.895.69

<) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having 2 par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Any dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. The Company has not declared proposed any dividend in the current year *°
and previous year.

In the cvent of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of equity shares held by the shareholderss.

Tudi

As per record of the Company, i s its register of sharchold, bers and other dectaration ived from sharehold ing b ial interest, the above share holding
represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

d) Shareholder holding more than 5% of equity shares as ai the end of the year :

As at March 38, 2022 As at March 31,2021
Name of Shareholders
No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
Centrum Capital Limited, 9,89,56.900 100.00%
Holding Company*
Centrum Retail Services Limited, 0.00% 9,89.56,900 100.00%

Holding Company

*During the year Centrum Retail Services Limited transferred Shareholding in the Company to Centrum Capital Limited on August 23, 2021

€) Details of shares held by Promoters

Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year (Equity Shares in nos. of Rs. 100 each)

As at_31st March 2022

Promoters name No of Shares % holding of % Change during
equity shares the year

Fully paid Equity share

Centrum Capital Limited 9.89,56.900 100% 100%

Centrum Retail Services Limited 0% -100%

As at 3ist March 2021

Promoters name No of Shares % holding of % Change during
equity shares the vear
Fullv paid Equity share
Centrum Retail Services Limited 9.89.56,900 100% %
n Shares reserved for issue under options

Refer note 43 for shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option scheme (ESOP) of the Company.

£) Aggregate number of equity shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years diately p ing the reporting date:
Nit
h) No dividend is paid during the year or recommended by the Board Of Directors for the financial year 2021-22.

i) Refer Note 46 Capitai Management for the Company's objectiy ocesses for managing capital




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes (0 the financial statemeats a3 af and for the vear caded March 11, 2022

(Currency © Indian Rupeces in bakhs)

Particulars Asat A% 1}
Magch 31, 2022 March 31,2021
2. Other equity

a) Securities premium IX619.96 1X.639.96
b} Statutory reserve 02w 0294
<) Employee stock options . 4717
d) Retained camings 2884 [LRIRSY
<) Impairment reserve - 1.50x1
N Capial contribution 694,60 639,74
£) Other comprehensive income . 2.4
Fotal 19.863.09 ZOIJIQ.ZI

A. Nature and purpose of reserves

a. Securities premium reserve
Securitics premium reserve is used 10 1ecord the premiwm on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for fimited purposes such as
issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

b. Statutory resenve
Reserve created under 45-1C(1) in The Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934 a sum not kess than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as
disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared.

c. Employee stock options
The share options outstanding account is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under Employce stock
option plan.

d. Retained Earings
Retained earnings comprises of the Company 's undistributed earnings alter taxes

e. Impairment reserve
Impairment reserve comprises of the excess provisiong as per kncome Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning norms {IRACP norms)
as compared to the provisiong as per the ECL model adopted by the Company.

1. Capital contribution
Capital contribution represents the indirect equity contribution by the Parent.

B. Movement in Other equity Asat Asat
Macch 31, 2022 March 31,2021
a) Securities preminm
Opcening balance 18.639.96 18.639.96
Add : Premium Received on issue of securities - -
Closing Balance {a) 18,639.96 18,639.96

b) Statutory reserve

Opening balance 502.99 466.62
Add : Transfer from retained camings - 36.37
Closing Balance {b) 502.99 502.99
¢) Employee stock options

Opening balance 47178 29980
Add : Additions during the year 115.61 17198
Less : Termination of Services (587.39)

Closing Balance (53] - 471.78

d) Retained Earnings

Opening balance (1.406.0%) (394.27)
Add: Profit for the year (87.06) 181.84
Add: Other comprehensive income (12.20) 2.96
1.808.02
Amount available for appropriation 302.75 (409.47)
Appropriations:
‘Fransfer to impairment reserve 277.21 960.17
Transfer to statutory reserve - 36.37
Closing Balance [0)] 25.54 {1,406.01)

e} Impairment reserve

Opening balance 1.530.81 570.64
Add : Transfer from retained eamnings 277.21 960.17
Less : Transfer to Retained Earning {1.808.02)

Closing Balance * - 1,530.81

f) Capital contribution

Opening balance 689.75 64R.56
Add : Addition during the year 4.85 419
Closing Balance @ 694.60 689.75

(atbtctd+e) 19,863.09 20429.28

* During the financial year ended March 31, 2022. the loans and advances held by the Company were transfered to Unity Small Finance Bank
Limited ("USFB™), as required by (he RBI License issued on October 12, 2021,

As on the date of transfer. the Company held INR 1 R808.02 Lakhs in impairment reserve as required by RBI notification RB1/2019-20/170
DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22,10. 106:2019-20 dated March 13. 2020. As on March 31. 2022, the Company does not hold any loans and
advances.

The Company has grouped it under retained earnings for financial vear ended March 31, 2022. The Management has also sought ratification
of the same from RB1 vide a communication dated March 30, 2022, This amount shall not be available for appropriation pending ratification
by RBL

1eq, N9 109463%
Zl')?g(:&nue point BIdY
* 100} 01, Ambedtal f\m,
pp. Bhaset Maia Lingma.

Lalbaug, Parel,
siambi - 40082




Centrum Financial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

23 Other income

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Interest income on loan porttolio - -
Interest on tixed deposits - -
Interest income on ICDs - .

Total - -

24 Fces and commission income

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
¥in lakh Tin lakh
Comrmission income - -

Total - -

25 Finance costs

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Particulars

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Interest on debt securities (unlisted) 62.43 -
Interest on debt securities (listed) - -
Interest on borrowings (other than debt sccurities) . - -
Interest on Deposits 248.12 -
Intercst on securitised liabilities - -
Interest on lease liabilities - -
Other borrowing costs - -
Total 310.55 -

26 Other expenses

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Rent, taxes and energy costs - -

Directors' fees, allowances and expenses 8.51 -
Auditor's fees and expenses (Refer note 26.1 below) 7.50 -
Legal and professional charges 1.00 -
Other expenditure 5.38 -
Total 22.38 -

26.1 Auditor's fees and expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

As Auditor:

Statutory Audit fees 7.50 -

Limited Review fees - -

Total

I tré Point 8idg,
" 140" Ur. Amozdkar Road,

O¢p. Bharat Méta Cingma,
Latbauy, Farel.
Mumba: - 405312,




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements foe the yoar caded 31 Muarch 2022
{Currency : Indinn Rupees in lakhs)

Discontinued Profit and Loss Statement

Centrum Financal Services Limsted ("CFSL") has transterred ats business 1o Uity Small Finance Bank Linnted ("USFB”) asa
going concern by way of slump sake. Accordingly. CFSL has discontinued its NBFC business with effect from November 1, 2021. To
that extent, it has made the disclosure to the stock exchange.

Reserve Bunk of Indin ("RBI™) vide uts letter dated October 12, 2021 has issued banking licence to USFB 1o carry on the business of
small finance bank. The letter issued along with the licence specifies certain conditions, wherein it is specified that CFSL has to
register itself as Core Investment Company (C1C) with RBI.

In compliance of the same, CFSL. vide its letters dated November 10, 2021 and January |3, 2022 has applicd for conversion of
CFSL., registered as a Systemically Important- Non Deposit Accepling- Non Banking Financisl Company - lnvestment and Credit
Company. into a Core lnvestiment Company.

{Amount)

For the year
Particutars For the year ended ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Revenue from operations

tnterest income 6.924.01 11,642.34

Rental income 13.03 226

Fee and commission income 394.25 1.000.79

Net gain on fair value change 159.97 807.17

Net gain on d gnition of ial i under d cost |

category 327.36 419.15

Other operating revenue 55.57 46.50

Total revenue from operations 7,874.19 13.918.21

Other income 34.62 166.36

Total income 7,928.81 14,084.57

Expenses )

Finance costs 5.336.94 9.271.00

Impai on financial i 2492 487.12

Employee benefits cxpenses 1.814.68 2.706.77

Depreciation, amortisation and impainnent 87.75 161.21

Other expenses 605.59 1.192.36

Total expenses 7.869.89 13.818.46

Profit (Joss) before tax before exceptional items from di d

operations 58.93 266.11

Exceptional items - Gain on BTA (refer note) 594.26 -

Profit/(loss) before tax from discontinued operations 653.18 266.11

Tax expense:

- Current tax -

- Deferred tax 407.33

- (Excess)/Short provision of earlier years 84.27 ﬂzg_ K3, 1094631y

Total tax expense 407.33 84.27 \?. CénlvéPm'm Bidy

Net Profit for the year 245.85 181.84 o 01‘00! 1. Abagkar Raad'
=r {000, Braray a1y, Cinemg,

Irems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss l"-'lballg, Pacgl. !

R of post-employment benefit obligati (7.21) 3.95 Wembai - 4g515

- Income tax relating to these items
Jtems that will be reclassified to profit or loss -

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (17.21) 3.95
Total comprehensive income for the year 228.64 185.79

Earnings per equity share
Facc value of Y10 per share

- Basic (%)*

- From Continuing Operations (0.03) -

- From Discontinued Operations 0.02 0.18
- Diluted (3)*

- From Continuing Operations (0.03) -

- From Discontinued Operations 0.02 0.18

* Not annualised

Note : The exceptional item amounting to ¥ 186.92 lakh represents the gain arising on account of slump sale transaction of 2
594.25 lakh(net of deferred tax asset transferred) and deferred tax expense arising in October 31, 2021 of T 407.33 lakh which has been
added to the gain as the corresponding net assets were transferrred under the Busi Transfer Agr
Net cash flows attri! to the Discontinued Operations are as fi

For the year
Particulars For the year ended ended 31 lzlarch

31 March 2022 2021

Net Cash flows from/{used) in operaiing activities 41,116.10 1.838.98
Net Cash flows from/(used) in investing activities (33.909.01) (671.43)
Net Cash flows from/(used) in financing activities 1.799.44 3.449.30
Net Increase:(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 9.006.50 4.616.85
Cash and cash equivalents as at I April (opening balance) 8.203.13 3.387.25
Less : Balance transferred through stump sale -
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March (closing balance} 87.31 0.08




An anahysis of changes in the gross carrying smount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to all onward lending is as follons:

Particuturs Stage | Stage2 Stage ]
Gross carrying amound as at April £, 20210 7393128 8,060.7% 1.280.18
Asscls onginated® 60.517.49
Net transfer between sixgges
Tranafer to stage | 433303 {4.33303)
Transfer to stage 2 -
Transfer to stage 3 (734%) V.16) 8259
Asscts derecognised of collevted including death s preciosure
cmes) (64.597.78) (68.91) (17.18)
Amounts writien-ofl’ B (644.17)
Assets ransfered through slump sale (74.110.38) (3.649.63) (701.39)
Gross carrying amount as at 31st March, 2022 - - -
* Asscts originated represents the disburseinents made during the year,
Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below:
Particulars 31 March 2022
Stage | Stage 2 Stage3 Total |
ECL provision at the beginning of the year 169.76 4317 746.48 959.41
Add: ECL provision during the year 2.69 (23.07) 49.29 28.91
Less: Write-ofts during the year (644.18) (644.18)
Less: Amounts transferred through slump sate {172.43) {20.10) (151.59) (344.14)
ECL provision at the end of the year - - - -

Opg. Prare: Mats Lragma,
teibaug Farel,
Mumbar - 400512,




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the Anancial statements a3 ot and for the venr ended March M, 2022

{Currency © Indian Rupees n lakhs)

28 Disclosure pursuant te tnd AS 12 “Income Tares™
284 Major ponents of Lax evp: (] ) Year Ended March M,
Particulars 022 0

1. Income Tax Expense charged to Stalement of Profit and Loss:
1) Cutrent mcome tax:
Current income fax expense

Tax cxpense in respect of casher vears . -
) Deferred 1av:
Tax evpense on origination and reversal of temporary differences 40733 X427
Income 121 expense reported in Profit or Loss (i + i) 407,33 84.27

1. Income Tan Expense charged to Other Compreheasive Income :
(1) Income fax expense  {gain) rekating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (s.0n 0.9

tih) Income tax expense  (gain) relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -

income tax expense reported in the OCI { i + i) (%.01) 0.99

d profits)

282 Reconciliation of 1ax exp and the ing profit - (On

The Company has excrcised the option permitted under scction tISBAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance,
2019 in March 2020. Accordingly. the Company had recognised and remeasured Provision for Income Tax and Deferred Tax based on the rate prescribed in the said
section, .

A reconcifiation of income tax to the amount computed by applying statutory income tax rate to the income before taxes is summariscd below.
Year Ended March 31,

Particulars 2022 2021

(a) Profit before tax 320.27 266.11

(b) Corporate tax rate as per Income tax Act, 1961 . 25.168% 25.168%
{c) Tax on Accounting profit (c) = (a) *(b) R0.61 66.97

(d) Tax impact due to
{i) Tax expense of earlicr years . N

(ii) Disallowances on account of permanent difference . 170
(iii)(Benetit) ' Expense due to change in tax rates on the opening timing ditfferences - 0.02
{iv)Other items 327.02 £5.58
‘Total effect of tax adjustments (i) to (iv)) 327.02 17.30

(¢)  Tax expense recognised during the year (e)={c)+(d) 407.63 84.27
(f)  Effective tax rate (f)=(e)/(a) 127.28% 31.67%

* Post the BTA, there being no virtual certainty supported by convining evidence that there shall be future taxable profits against which the unaborbed losses / accumulated losses would be
utilised, the deferred tax assets as appearing in the books have been revered resulting in high effective tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2022,




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes 1o the fiaancial statements as st und for the year ended March 31, 2022

1Currency : Indian Rupees in bikhy)

p 8 Movement in Deferred Tases

LA Movement in defesred tas batances for the vear ended March 1), 2022

T {
As al March M, Recognised in ransferred under

Particulars 1021 profi or los Recognised in OCI BTA Recognined In Asat March 3, 2022
Profit or Loss

Deferred tax asset/ {Habilities)
) Depreciation on property, plant and cquipment QIR04) 204 - {276.93) -
Lease Habilities .07 007 . R .
EIR impact of linancial assets 6916 (69.16) - - -
EIR impact of financial liabilitics (22242 220 - . B
Unrealised gain on derivatives (1%6.54) 364 - - .
Goodwilt RREE} (3340 - - .
Impainnent loss on investments {R4.94) X4.94 . . .
Expected Credit loss on loans and other assets 47.12 247.12) - - -
Provision for employce benefits 2078 {20.7%) - - .
Disallowance under Section u's $0a(ia) - - - - -
DTA onbusiness loss 6R1.64 (6X1.64) . -
xii) - Others 10.23 (10.23) - 0.27 -

Total ] 130.66 (130.65) - (276.66 -
S5, 276:66)

28.3.B  Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended March 31, 2021

As at March 31, Recognised in As at March 31,

Particulars Recognised in OCI

2020 profit or loss 2021
Deferred tax asset/ (liabilities) ~
i) Depreciation on property. plant and equipment {143.26) (94.78) - (238.04)
i) Lease liabilities 0.25 (0.32) - 0.07)
iti)  EIR impact of financial assets 55.34 13.82 - 69.16
iv) EIR impact of financial liabilitics (239.66) 17.54 - {222.12)
v)  Unrealised gain on derivatives (64.82) (321.72) - (386.54)
vi)y  Goodwill 3344 - - 3344
vii})  lmpairment loss on investments 10515 (190.09) - {R4.94)
viti) Expecied Credit loss on loans and other assets 330.25 {R3.13) - 24742
ix) Provision for ecmployee benefits 13.74 R4 {1.00) 2078
x) Disallowance under Section u’s 40a(ia) 125.49 (125.49) - -
xi) DTA on business loss - 631.64 681,64
xii) Others 0.02 10.21 - 10.23
Total 21594 (84.27) {1.00) 130.67
28.3.C Amounts recognised in respect of current tax / deferred tax directly in equity:
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31,2022 March 31,2021

Amounts recognised in respect of current tax / deferred tax directly in equity - -
284 Tax losses

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised (3.508.81) 242.09)
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Centrum Financial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency : Iidian Rupees in likhs)

Earnings per cquity share
(Face value of 210 per share)
Basic camings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year antrib

(%)

to cquity

hokd

outstanding during the year. For the pumpose of cakeulating diluted camings per share. the net peofit or loss for the year attrib

s by the weighted average number of equity sharcs
harcholders and the weighted

10 equily

average nunber of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity sharcs.

EPS - Continuing operations

Particulars

For the year ended

hlarch 31, 2022
Net profit after tax available for cquity sharcholders for basic EPS (2 in lakh) (332.91)
Net profit after tax available for equity sharcholders for diluted EPS (2 in lakh) {332.91)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (Nos.in lakh) 990
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS (Nos.in lakh) 990
Basic earnings per share (3) - (0.34)
Diluted earnings per share (%) (0.34)

EPS - Discontinuing operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31,2021

Net profit after tax available for equity sharcholders for basic EPS (2 in lakh) 245.85 181.84
Net profit after tax available for equity shareholders for diluted EPS (2 in lakh) 245.85 181.84
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (Nos.in takh) 989.57 989.57
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS (Nos.in lakh) 989.57 989.57
Basic earnings per share (3) 0.25 0.18
Diluted earnings per share (%) 0.25 0.18

EPS - Continued and Discontinuing operations

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Net profit after tax available for equity shareholders for basic EPS (2 in lakh) (87.06) 181.84
Net profit after tax available for equity shareholders for diluted EPS (¥ in lakh) (87.06) 181.84
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (Nos.in lakh) 989.57 989.57
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS (Nos.in lakh) 989.57 989.57
Basic earnings per share (3) 0.09) 0.18
Diluted earnings per share (%) (0.09) 0.18
Effects of share options on diluted earnings per share
(For the year ended 31st March, 2022)
Particulars Nos.
Net profit for the year ended 3 1st March, 2022 (% in lakh) - Continuing operations (332.91)
Net profit for the year ended 3 Ist March, 2022 (2 in lakh) - Discontinued operations 24585
Net profit for the year ended 3 1st March, 2022 (2 in lakh) - Continuing and Discontinued operations

(87.06)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year ended 31st March, 2022 (Nos.) 990
Average fair value of one option during the year ended 2022 (%) Nil
Weighted average number of shares under Employee stock option during the year ended 31st March,
2022 (Nos.) Nil
Weighted average number of shares under Conversion with respect to Compound Financial Instrument
during the year ended 31st March 2022 -
Exercise price for shares under option during the year ended 31st March, 2022 () Nil

Reg. No. 109463W
203, Cented Point Bldg,
* 100" Or. Ambadkar Rued,

Laivauy, Paegh,
turka - 405312,

Qrp. Bharot tAata Cinema, f




Computation of Earnings per share - Continuing operations

. . Farnings per
Earnings Shares
Particulars (Tin lakh) (Nos.) s'(l;;'e
Net peoit for the year ended 315t March, 2022 (332.91)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during year ended 3151 March, 2022 9.89.56,942
Basic camings per share (0.)4)
Impact of Compound Financial Instrument -
Number of shares under conversion - -
Diluted canungs per share (33291 9.89.56.942 (0.3
Computation of Earnings per share - Discontinued operations
Particulars Earnings Shares E“";‘l"';g: P
(R in lukh) {Nos.) (!;
Net profit for the vear ended 3 1st March, 2022 245.85
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during year ended 31st March, 2022 9.89.56.942 -
Basic camings per share 0.25
Impact of employee stock options -
tmpact of Compound Financia! Instrument -
Number of shares under employee stock options - Nil
Number of shares under conversion - -
Diluted camings per share : 245.85 9.89.56.942 0.25
Computation of Earnings per share - Continuing & Discontinued operations
Particulars Earnings Shares Ea":;:i P
(R in Jakh) (Nos.) Q)
Net profit for the year ended 31st Marci, 2022 (87.06)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during year ended 3Ist March, 2022 9,89.56,942
Basic camings per share (0.09)
Impact of employee stock options -
Impact of Compound Financial Instrument -
Number of shares under employee stock options - Nil
Number of shares under conversion - -
Diluted eamings per share (87.06) 9.89,56.942 (0.09)

Note

1. Since the rate of conversion of the compulsorily convertible debentures can be ascertained only on the date of conversion, the same have not been considered while
calculating the diluted eamings per share except for the compound financial instrument which are issued with fixed conversion terms.

fey. R, 109463V
203, CentrPaint 8ldg,
' 109! 0r. Arvaadkar Raad,
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note on Business Transfer Agreement
RBIvide its letter dated 12 October 2021, granted a licence 1o Centrum Financial Services Limited, an iatc company of the Company to cstablish
small finance bank (SFB).

One of the licensing conditions was that the Company shall transfer its business under slump sale before the date of commencement of business by Unity
Small Finance Bank Limited (USFB). Therefore, the Company sold its business to USFB vide a Business Transfer Agreement (by way of slump salc)
("BTA") dated October 26, 2021

USFB commenced its operations on November 1, 2021. Pursuant to the BTA, the entire business undentaking of CFSLY. was trnsterred to USEB, via slump
sale as a going concem, on “as-is-where-is” basis, cffective from November 01, 2021 for a total consideration of INR 31,600 Lakh. The Company had
received the consideration in cash.

Accordingly. the Company has derecognised the assets and liabilitics at book value in its books of accounts pentaining to the NBFC-NDS! undertaking. The
excess of consideration received over the value of assets and liabilities ferred was recognised as gain on slump sale and credited to the Profit and Loss
Account. Since the transfer of the undenaking constitutes discontinued operations, the financiol statement for the year ended and as at 31 March 2021 have
been drawn in accordance with Ind AS 105 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Therefore, the same are not comparable with the
current year's financial statement. The sununary of assets and liabilities derecognised pursuant to the BTA is as under:

Particulars - INR in Lakh
Asscts

Cash and cash equivalents 17,108.86
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 1,472.45
Derivative Financial Instruments 3,864.53
Loans 78,117.51
Receivables .. -
Investments 2,738.44
Other financial assets 1,066.48
Current tax assets (net) 1.732.37
Property, plant and equipment 3,780.99
Intangible assets under development 8.61
Intangible assets 141.05
Right of Use - Premises 24.03
Goodwill 4,981.52
Other non-financial assets 477.60
Total asscts transferred 1,15,514.42
Liabilities

Derivative Financial Liabilities 8,332.30
Trade payables 654.42
Debt securities 65,373.47
Borrowings (other than debt securities) $,820.89
Lease Liabilities 24.48
Deferred tax liabilitics (net) 276.66
Other financial liabilities 270.06
Provisions 173.04
Other non-financial liabilities 583.49
Total liabilities transferred 84,508.80
Total Net assets transferred 31,005.62
Purchase consideration received 31,600.00
Gain on slump sale 594.38

Note on Amalgamation

RBI vide its letter dated 12 October 2021, granted a license to Centrum Financial Services Limited, an associate company to establish a small finance bank
(SFB) as a part of revival/ reconstruction of Punjab and Maharashtra Co-operative Bank Limited (PMC Bank). One of the licensing conditions was that the
Company shall cease its Lending business and surrender its NBFC license on the date of cc ement of busi by Unity Small Finance Bank Limited.

Pursuant to the above, the Company transferred its lending business to Unity Small Finance Bank Limited as a going concern by way of a slump sale on |
November 2021. Unity Small Finance Bank Limited has commenced its business w.e.f. I November 2021. Pursuant to the aforesaid, the Company has
discontinued its lending business with effect from 1 November 2021. The Company has also applied to RBI for conversion of Company, registered as a
Systemically Important-Non Deposit Accepting-Non Banking Financial Company- Investment and Credit Company, into a Core Investment Company.

[N RN 105263%
503, Ceaied Paic Bldg,
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupecs in lakhs)
33.  Leasc liabilitics

A)  The following is the movement in lease liabilities:

Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance as at beginning 32.04 11.01
Additions - 39.95
Finance cost accrued during the period 1.68 3.21
Deletions 0.46 1.43
Payment of lcase liabilities 9.24 20.70
Transfer under slump sale (24.02)
Balance as at end* 0.00 32.04
*During the year Company has transferred Assets and Liabilities under BTA to USFB as of Nov 1, 2021 under Slump

Sale

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Less than one year - 15.59
One to five years - 20.46
More than five years - -
Total - 36.05

The amounts considered above are actual cash outflows. The leasc liability in the balance sheet is the present value of these
amounts as on the reporting date.

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation on Right of use assets 8.32 18.17
Interest expense on lease liability 1.68 3.21
Total cash outflow for leases (rental payments) (9.24) 20.70
Additions/ transfer to Right of use assets (23.10) 41.68
Carrying value Right of use assets* 0.00 32.34

*During the year Company have transferred Assets and Liabilities under BTA to USFB as of Nov 1, 2021

The Company has taken various office premises under lease. Certain agreements provide for cancellation by either party
or certain agreements contains clause for escalation and renewal of agreements. The non-cancellable operating lease
agreements are ranging for a period 12 to 36 months. There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements.

The weighted average incremental discounting rate of 10% has been applied to lease liabilities recognised in the balance
sheet as at the reporting date .

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the assets are sufficient to
meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

B) This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessor.
The Company has given office premises under lease. The income from lease recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss are Rs. 13.75 Lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 2.26 Lakhs). Agreements provide for cancellation by either party or
contain clause for escalation and renewal of agreements. The non-cancellable operating lease agreement is for a period of
36 months.

As at As at
Particulars ' X March 31, 2022 March 31, 2621
Less than one year .
One to five years
More than five years
Total

4. 1052634
203, Centt Pt E\ﬂgé
{ o s\r\hs:‘;ha'“ﬂui;
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

M.

3s.

Commitments and contingencics

Particulars As at 31 March,
2022 2021
Contingent liabilities
i) Corporate guarantee - 3.000.00
i) Income tax demands on account of dispute - 325.51
i) Intercorporate borrowings written back 164.34 164.34

Capital commitments
i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be ¢xecuted on - -
capital account and not provided for

ii}  Commitments related to loans sanctioned but undrawn - 1,207.39

Future cash outflows in respect of above are detenninable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending with various

forums/authorities. It is not practicable for the Company to esti the timings of the cash flows, if any, in respect of the above
pending resolution of the respective proceedings. The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above
contingent liabilitics. The Company is of the opinion that above d ds are not ble and expects to succeed in its appeals.

The management belicves that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's
financial position and results of operations.

The Company did not have any long tenn contracts including derivative contracts for which any provision is required for the
foreseeable losses.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) For the year ended 31 March,
As per the provisions of Section 135 of Companics Act, 2013 2022 202t
A)  Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year was - 9.42

B)  Amount spent during the year on

Construction/acquisition of any assets

i) In Cash - -
ii) Yet to be paid in cash - -

Total (1) - -
It On purpose other than (i} above
i) In Cash - 942
ii) Yet to be paid in cash - -

Total (11) - 9.42

Total (1 +1I) - 9.42

Rao: ). 108463
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Cumency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

3. Dues to Micro, Smail Enterprises
Disclosure pertaining to Micro and Small Enterpriscs as at March 31, 2022 is as under.

The details of amounts outstanding together with interest paid /payable to Micro and Small enterpriscs based on information
available with the Company is as under:
As at 31 March,

2022 2021
i) Amounts outstanding but not due as at March 31, - -
i) Amounts due but unpaid as at March 31, - -
iii)  Amounts paid after appointed date during the year - -
iv)  Amount of interest accrued and unpaid as at March 31, - -
v)  The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in - -

making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under this Act.
vi)  The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even - -
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purposc of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro, Sinall and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006

38. Segment Reporting

-
The Company’s Chief financial officer (CFO) and Managing director (MD) have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision
Maker, examine the Company’s performance on an entity level. The Company has only one reportable segment i.e. business of
financing. The Company does not have any reportable geographical segment. Thus, the segment revenue, g results, total
carrying value of segment assets and segment liabilities, total costs incurred to acquire segment assets, total amount of charge of
depreciation during the period are all reflected in the financial statements. No single customer contributes more than 10% of the
total revenue camed during the year,




Centrum Financial Services Limited

Notes to the finsncial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Cumency  Indian Rupees in lakhs)

9. Related Party Disclosure

A3 per the requisement of ind AS 24, on related party disclosurcs, the name of the related partics with the description of the relationship and transactions between the reparting

enterprise and its related parties, as identificd by the

39.1  List of retated parties
Nature of relutionship
Ultimate holding company

Holding company

List of Subsidiary/ holding/ Associate/ subsidiary
of a holding company as per 2(76)(vili)

Key management personnel (KMP)

39.2  Transactions with Related parties during the year

g ate as follows

Name of the party
Centrum Capital Limited (From June 30, 2019)

Centrum Retail Services Limited (From Junc 30, 2019 upto
August 22, 2021)
Centrum Capital Limited (From August 23, 2021)

Centrum Wealth Management Limited
Centrum Insurance Brokers Limited

Centrum Investment Advisory Limited
Centrum Broking Limited

Centrum Capital Intemational Limited
CCAL Investment Managers Limited
Centrum Alternatives LLP

Centrum REMA LLP

Centrum Capital Advisors Limited

Centrum International Services PTE Limited
Centrum Al ive Inv Managers Limited
Centrum Housing Finance Limited

Centrum Microcredit Limited

Club 7 holidays Private Limited

JBCG Advisory Services Private Limited
Centrum Credit Opportunities Trust

BG Advisory Services LLP

Ranjan Ghosh (Managing Director and CEO)

Mr. Abhishek Baxi (CFO) (From December 2019)
Mr. S.K. Apte (Non Executive Director)

Mr. Rishad K. Byramjee (Non Executive Director)
Mr. G. S. Sundararajan (Independent Director)
Subrata Kumar Atindra Mitra (Independent Director)
Siddharth Sengupta (Independent Director)

Mrs. Dipali Seth (Independent Director)

For the year ended 31 March,

No. Nature of Transaction Name of Party
2022 2021
1  Loans given Centrum Retail Services Limited 1.860.00 2.900.00
Centrum Capitat Limited 4.300.00 -
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 25.00 4,000.00
Club 7 Holidays Private Limited - 200.00
JBCG Advisory Services Private Limited - 2.800.00
2 Loan repayment Centrum Capital Limited 4,300.00 2.400.13
Centrum Retail Services Limited 1.860.00 6.004.68
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 3.125.00 1.861.62
JBCG Advisory Services Private Limited - 2.800.00
Club 7 Holidays Private Limited - 150.00
3 Loan taken Centrum Housing Finance Limited - -
Centrum Microcredit Limited 4.869.00 400.00
4 Loan repaid during the year Centrum Housing Finance Limited -
Centrum Microcredit Limited 400.00
S§  Sale of debentures Centrum Capital Advisors Limited 318.86
6  Purchase of PTC investment - Cenmum Retail Services Limited 73438
7 Debenture sold Centrum Credit Opportunities Trust 1.528.61 4.038.73
8  Debenture purchased Centrum Credit Opportunities Trust 1.500.00

203, Cent:#Point Bldg,
100! 8. Arsedkar Road,
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes (o the financis) statemcnts a3 at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Cuncncy : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

39,
39.2  Trunsactions with Related parties duriag the year (Continuced)
F 1 Ay .
No. Nature of Trunsaction Name of Party For the yeur ended A1 March
2022 2021
9 Investment in Compulsory Convertible Debentures Centrum Microcredit Limited -
during the year
10 Consideration received for sale of portfolio on Centrum Microcredit Limited 126.32 -
Direct Assignment
11 MLD repaid including accrued interest* Centrum Wealth Management Limited 304344 22.195.65
*MLDs were directly purchased from the market by the companies duc to the which same is not disclosed by the Company. However, at the time of redemption amount is
repaid to related party holding the M1.Ds as on that date.
12 Sharing of economic benefits Centrum Retail Services Limited -
13 Reat income Centrum Microcredit Limited 0.05 0.09
Centrum Retail Services Limited 12.98 -
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 0.86 217
14 Service fees income Centrum Retail Services Limited -
Centrum Microcredit Limited -
JBCG Advisory Services Private Limited 1.56 17.33
1S Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company Centrum REMA LLP -
Centrum Wealth Management Limited -
16  Advisory fees income Centrum Capital Limited 215.63 335.00
17 Interest income Centrum Capital Limited 1.53 193.47
Centrum Retail Services Limited 9292 392.46
Club 7 Holidays Private Limited 16.19 2241
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 207.47 156.74
JBCG Advisory Services Private Limited - 17.35
i8 interest Income on debt sccurities Centrum Microcredit Limited - 225.00
19  Interest expenses Centrum Retail Services Limited 37.63 150.91
Centrum Housing Finance Limited - -
Centrum Microcredit Limited 248.12 1.99
Centrum Capital Limited 11329 -
28 Processing fees income Centrum Capital Advisors Limited - 1.81
21 Payment of rent Centrum Capitai Limited 1.05 1.80
Centrum Retail Services Limited 56.12 67.41
Centrum Wealth Management Limited - -
Centrum Broking Limited - 242
22 Electricity expenses paid on behalf of the Centrum Capital Limited -
Company
Centrum Retail Services Limited 9.38 13.66
Centrum Wealth Management Limited - -
Centrum Broking Limited - 0.25




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes fo the financial statcments as ut and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Cumrency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Rclated Party Disclosure (Continucd)

39.2 Transactions with Related partics during the year (Continucd)

For the year cnded 31 Murch,

No. Nature of Transuction Namc of Party 1022 107
23  Printing and stationery, postage and courier and  Centrum Retail Senvices Limited 282 416
telephonce expense Centrum Wealth Management Limited - -
Centrum Broking Limited - 0.25
24 Membership & subscription Centrum REMA LLP 0.47
Centrum Broking Limited 113
25 Travelling expense Club 7 Holidays Private Limited 0.51
26 Brand fees Centrum Capital Limited 5.00 10.00
27 Arrangers fees Centrum Capital Limited -
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 451.10 34.33
28 Rcimbursement of expenses Centrun Capital Limited -
Centrum Retail Services Limited -
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 0.14
Centrum Microcredit Limited -
Centrum Broking Limited 0.71
Centrum REMA LLP -
29  Group allocation expense Centrum Retail Services Limited 315.00
30  Security deposit repaid Centrum Retail Services Limited 9.46
31  Corporate Guarantees issued by ultimate holding  Centrum Capital Limited 18.,548.15
Company on behalf of Company
32 Corporate Guarantees given / Securities pledged  JBCG Advisory Services Private Limited 2.500.00
for group company
BG Advisory Services LLP 3.000.00
33 Corporate Guarantecs issued by holding Company Centrum Retail Services Limited 2.500.00
on behall of Company
34  Commission and brokerage expenses Centrum Broking Limited 0.21 0.10
Centrum Investment Advisors Limited 312.20
35 Managerial remuneration Mr. Ranjan Ghosh 41057 227.79
Mr. Abhishek Baxi 57.71 43.74
36 Compulsory Convertible Debentures issued Centrum Retail Services Limited -
37 Asset (Computer) purchased Centrum Alternatives Lid 0.14
Centrum Broking Limited 0.62
Centrum REMA LLP 245
Centrum Insurance Brokers Limited 0.05
38 Professional fees Centrum International Services Pte Lid 41.20 -
39 Fixed Asset Centrum Retail Services Limited 33048 -
40 Receivable Centrum Capital Limited 2.355.00 -
Unity Small Finance Bank Ltd 363.74 -
Ignis Capital Advisors Lid 741 -
41  Imvestment Iynis Capital Advisors Limited 1.00
Unity Small Finance bank Limited(Equity Shares) 31.601.00
Unity Small Finance bank Limited(Equity Shares) 4.349.00
Unity Small Finance bank Limited(Share Warrants) 190.00

<
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statemenis as st and for the year ended March 3, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

39.3  Balances with Related parties as at year end

As at March M,

Ne. Nature of Transaction Name of Party
y 2022 2021
1 Commission and brokerage payabdle Centrum Broking Limited
2 Corporate guarantee reccived Centrum Capital Limited 19.764.33
Centrum Retail Services Limited 2,500 00
3 Corporate guarantee / Security given 1BCG Advisory Services Private Limited 2.500.00
BG Advisory Services LLP 3.000.00
4 Loan asset Centrum Capital Limited -
Centrum Retail Services Limited .
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 3.100.00
Club 7 Holidays Private Limited 203.07
§  Investment * Centrum Microcredit Limited 2.355.00
*1 is on of fair valuation of inv
6  Margin balance with broker Centrum Broking Limited 126.89 202.75
7  Other receivable JBCG Advisors Private Limited -
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 2.4
8  Other financial liability Centrum Capital Limited -
Centrum Broking Limited - ¢
Centrum Microcredit Limited 4.869.00 -
9  Debt Sccurities Centrum Retail Services Limited - 1.509.14
Centrum Capital Limited 1.509.14 -
10 Trade payable Centrum Retail Services Limited - 116
Centrum Wealth Management Limited 9.72 -
Club 7 Holidays Private Limited - 0.27
Centrum Alternatives Ltd - 0.14
Centrum Capital Limited - 11.05
11 Payable on the accounts of assignments Centrum Microcredit Limited - 136.04
12 TDS receivable Centrum Microcredit Limited - 6.03
13 Debt Service Reserve Account Club 7 Holidays Private Limited - 6.87
14 Deposit Received Centrum Microcredit Limited 4.869.00 -
15  Investment Unity Small Finance Bank Ltd (Equity Investment) 35.950.00 -
Unity Small Finance Bank L1d (Investment in Share Warrants) 190.00 -

16 Margin balance with broker Unity Small Finance Bank Limited (Payable Cash Balance) 126.89




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes {0 the financial statements 83 at and for ihe year eaded March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupecs in lakhs)
40. Emplo)ee beneflts - Disclosure pursuant to 1nd AS 19 'Emplos ec Benefits'

A. Delined contribution plans
The Company makes Provident fund contnbutions which are defincd contnbulion plans for qualifying employees. Under the schemes., the
Compan) 13 icquircd to contnbute a speaificd poscentage of the payviol] costs to fund the benefus

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the statcment of profit and Toss tow anifs contribution to defined contribution plans
which are included under contribution to provident and other fumds:

For the year ended X1 March,
2022 021
Provident fund 7108 Hnx
B. Defined Benefit Plan
3) The Company has a funded defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is govemed by the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972, Uskler the Act,
an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefits. The Tevel of benefits provided depend on the membyr's
lengih of service and salary at retirement age. The fund is managed by an independent Insurance Company. The Insurance Company is
ponsible for the administration of the plan assets and for defining the investment strategies.

The following 1ables ise the p of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of protit or loss and the funded status and
amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

For the year ended 31 March,

Change in defined benefit obligations: 2022 2021

Defined benefit obligation, beginning of the year 1176 X194
Current service cost 17.42 2.2t
Past service cost -
Interest cost 428 5.37
Remeasurements (gains) - losses -

Actuarial (gains) / losses -
arising from changes in demographic assumptions (0.05) -
arising from changes in financial assumplions 15.74 (©1.07)
arising from changes in experience adjustments LOR (3.66)

Transfer in/(out) of liability 3443 -
Benefits paid from plan assets {12.712) -
Net transfer in / (out) (Including the effect of any busi binations/ di - -
Defined benefit obligation, end of the year 171,94 111.76
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year 46.01 4297
Interest income 1.76 2.82
Retum on plan assets, (excluding amount included in net Interest expense) (044 0.22
Employer's contributions 4,50 -
Benefits paid (12.72) -

Fair value of plan assets, end of the year 83.11 46.01

As at March 31, AsatMarch 31,

b) Amount recognized in the balance sheet consists of: 2022 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligation 171,94 111.75
Fair value of plan assets R311 46.01
Net liability 88.83 65.74
For the year ended 31 March,
¢) The ised in the St of Profit and Loss are as follows: 2022 2021
Service Cost
Current service cost 17.42 28.21
Past service cost - -
Total Service cost (i) 1742 2821
Net interest cost
Interest expense on DBO 2.32 255
Interest expense / (income) on plan assets
Interest exp: /(i on rei rights
Interest expense on effect of (asset celling)/onerous liability
Total Interest cost (ii) 2.52 2.55
. Remeasurements of Other Long term benefits (iii)
Defined bencfit cost included in Statement of Profit & Loss (iv) = (i+ii+iii) 19.94 30.76

For the year ended 31 March,

2022 2021
R wnised in other p ive income (OCI)
Due to changes in demographic assumptions (1.05) -
Due to changes in financial assumptions 15.74 0.07)
Due to changes in experience adjustments 1.08 (3.66)
Retumn on plan assets (excl. interest income) 0.44 0.22)
Total in other comprehensive income (OCl) ) 17.21 (3.95)

Total Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit & Loss and OC1 (i) =(iv +v) 37.15 26.81




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to ihe financial statements 33 at aad for 1he vear ended March 31, 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

d) The priacipal assumptions wsed in deiermining gratuity obligations for the Company's plans are shown below

With the objective of prosenting the plan ascts and plan labilitics of the defined benefits plans and post relitement medical benefits o therr
fair value on the balance sheet, assumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions 3 the valuation date

As at March 31,2022 Asal March 30, 2020
Discount rate 643, 687
Salary escalation rate* Q0% pa for the penl | yoarx, Fap a for next | yoxr, 6 265 pa for
6.20% p.a for the next | years, nest | vear, stuting from the 2nd year
stanting from the 2nd year & 5% p.athercafier, stanting from the drd

S.00% pa thereafter, stanting from  vear
the Xrd year

Expecied retum on plan assets 6.43% 657,

Rate of employee tumover 10.00°% [[IXH1

A ity rate during employ: Indian Assured Lives Mostality Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006~
2006-08) Ul %) Ute

Monrtality rate after employmnent NA. N.A.

* takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant factors
¢) The major categories of plan assets are as foliows:
Asat 31 March, Asat 31 March,
2022 2021
a) Insurer managed funds 34.61 46.00
b) Cash - - -

) Impact on defined benefit obligation - Sensitivity Analysis
For the year ended 31 March,

2022 2022 2021 2021
% Rate Amount % Rate Amount

Increase by 100 basis points
i) Impact of change in discount rate 7.43% (10.71) 71.57% 6.77)
ii) Iinpact of change in salary growth rate 7.60% 11.02 7.26% 7.73
iii) Impact of change in employee attrition rate 11.00% (1.23) 18.00% 0.45)

Decrease by 100 basis points
i} Impact of change in discount rate 5.43% 2.0 5.57% 7.65
i) Impact of change in salary growth rate 5.60% 10.30 6.26% {(5.9%)
iii) Impact of change in cmployee attrition rate 9.00% {1.24) 9.00% 0.3%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the ptions may be lated. When calculating the sensilivity of the defined benefit obligation
to signifi actuarial ptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of" ptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

£} Maturity

The defined benefit obligations shail mature after year end as follows: Asat 31 March, Asat 31 March,
Particulars 2022 2021

i) Ist Following Year 11.63 7.00
i) 2nd Following Year 1393 9.04
iti) 3rd Following Year 2693 20.96
iv} 4th Following Year 19.86 10.21
v) 5th Following Year 14.28 13.94
vi) Sumof Years6to i0 63.96 43.26
vii} Sum of Years 11 and above 13182 83.10

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8 years (previous year - § years).

3 Raeds
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes 1o the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Curreney @ Indian Rupees in Inkhs)

42, Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

42.8 Fair valuce hierarchy of financial instruments
This scction explains the judgements and estimates made in detennining the fair values of the tinancial instruments that are (a) recognised and
measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an

indication about the reliability of the inputs used in detenmining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the acec ing standard. An cxplanation of cach level follows underncath the wble.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markels (such as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as litle as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2,

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument js included in level 3.

There has been no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the years ended March 31,2022,

42.B.1  Financial instruments measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements as at March 31, 2022 is as follows.

Level | Level 2 Level 3 TFotal
Financial Assets
I Derivative assets - - - -
2 Investments
- Listed equity shares - - - -
- Perpetual Subordinated Tier I bonds - - - -
- Share Warrant - - 190.00 190.00
- Equity Shares - - 35,950.00 35.950.00
Total - - 36,140.00 36,140.00
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

42.B2  Financial instruments measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements as at March 31, 2021 is as follows.
Derivative assets - - - -

2 Investments
- Listed equity shares 0.63 - - 0.63

- Perpetual Subordinated Tier I bonds - - - -

- Debentures - - - -
- Cumulative Convertible Debentures - - 2,355.00 2,355.00
Total 0.63 - 2,355.00 2,355.63

2 Dinerma,
liatoaug: Fseal
Mumbas- 2005 2.




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statcments as at and for the year ended March 31,2022

(Currency : fndian Rupees in lakhs)

Note: Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not mcasured at fair value
The camrying amounts of cash and cash cquivalents. bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents. Pass through centificate, deposits, Trade
receivables, other financials assets. irade payables and other financial liabilities (excluding lease liability) are considered to be approximately equal
to their fair values due to their short term nature.

The fair values of loans, reccivables and loans in the nature of debentures are caleulated using a portfolio-based approach, grouping loans as far as
possible into homogenous groups based on similar characteristics. The fair value is then extrapolated to the portfolio using discounted cash flow
models that incorporate interest rate estimates considering all significant characteristics of the loans. This fair value is then reduced by impairment
allowance which is already caleulated incorporating probability of defaults and loss given defaults to arrive at fair value net of risk.

Debt securities are recorded at fair values by undertaking valuation techniques and thus, the camrying values are approximately equal to the fair
values.

The fair value of the borrowing and lease liability is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
o

Valuation techniques of financial instruments, other than those which are subsequently measured at amortised cost, have been arrived at
as under
Fair values of instruments designated under FVTPL are recorded at inarket values.
{a) Investment in CCD -
The valuation is done by determining the fair value of equity shares of the Company and adding the present value of future interest to be
received by the holder over tenure of CCD and subtracting the present value of dividend which holder will forgo due to non-conversion of
CCD during the tenure.

(b) Investment in Equity shares are valued using the quoted market prices.

Off-balance sheet positions

Estimated fair values of off-balance shect positions are based on discounted cash flow models. as explained above, which incomorate the credit risk
element through the discount factor.

Reg. N2, 159263v
. 2013. Centré gy Bidg,
100, Br, Anbegvar Road,
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Centrum Financlal Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and faor the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in fakhs)

44, Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complics with externally imp

from its regulators

d capital requir

and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to Support its business and 10 mavinise sharcholder value.

The pillars of ts policy are as follows:

a) Maintain diversity of sources of financing and spreading the maturity across tenure buckets in order to minimize liquidity risk.

b) Maintain investment grade ratings for all its liability issuances domestically and internationally by ensuring that the fin
preserved.

c) Manage financial market risks arising from Interest rate, equity prices and minimise the impact of market volatility on carnings.

d) Leverage optimally in order to maximise shareholder retums while maintaining strength and flexibility of balance sheet.

This framework is adjusted based on underlying macro-economic factors affecting busi envi L fi ial market conditi

I d

ancial strength of the balance sheets is

and interest rates environment,

No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years except those incorporated on
are under constant review by the Board

Regulatory capital

As an NBFC, the RBI requires us to maintain a minimum capital to risk weighted asses ratio ("CRAR") consisting of Tier I and Tier Il capila.l of 159
weighted assets. Further, the total of our Tier i1 capital cannot exceed 100% of our Tier | capital at any point of time. The capital m;

to maintain a healthy CRAR at all the times.

24 Y

However, they

b of our aggregate risk
anagement process of the Company ensures

The Company has complied with the notification RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 “Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards™

issued by Reserve Bank of India.

Please refer note 53.1 - "Capital Adequacy Ratio" under additional disclosures related 10 RB} (note 33) for the details of the same

45.  Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars As at March 31, Cash Flows Changes in Fair Others As at March 31,

2021 (net) value (net)* 2022
i) Debt securitics 68,694.68 (1,812.08) - (65,373.46) 1,509.14
i) Borrowings other than debt securities 6,557.99 2,115.31 - (8,673.30) 0.00
i) Deposits - 4,869.00 - - 4,869.00
Total 75,252.67 3,172.24 - (74,046.77) 6,378.14

*Transferred Liabilities under BTA to Unity Small Finance Bank Limited on November 12021

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars As at March 31, Cash Flows Changes in Fair Others As at March 31,
2020 (net) value {net)* 2021
i) Debt securities 52,076.26 15,918.46 - 699.95 68,694.68
ii) Borrowings other than debt securities 19,535.16 (12,861.38) - (115.79) 6,557.99
iii} Deposits 256.72 (100.00) - (156.72) -
Total 71,868.14 2,957.08 - 427.44 75,252.67




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financinl statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees i lakhs)
46.  Transferred financial assets

48.1 Transferred financial asscts that are derecognised in their entirety but where the Company has continuing involvement

The Company has not transferred any assets that are derecognised in their entircty where the Company i to have inuing involvement.

48.2 Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety

The Company has assigned loans (earlier measured at amortised cost) by way of direct assignment. As per the terms of these deals, since substantial risk and rewards
telated to these assets were transferred 1o the extent after mainlainning the required MMR to the buyer, the assets have been de-r enised from the Company's
Balance Sheet. The table below ises the carrying of'the derecognised financial assets :

As at October 31, As at March 31,

Particulars 2021 2021
Assignment

Carrying amount of de-recognised financial asset 1.826 1,148.20
Carrying amount of retained assets at amortised cost 203 326.41
Total 2,029.40 1.474.61

Reg. 45, 109463y
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statemcents as at and for the year caded March 31, 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

47.

48,

49.

50.

51,

Forcign exchange carnings/outfow
The foreign exchange carnings and outtlow is Rs. Nil during the year ended March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020: Rs. Nil)

‘The Company had invested in S0 Perpetual Subordmated Unsecured Bascl 1] Comphant Additional Tier | Bonds (“AT | Bonds”) issued by Yes Bank Limited aggregating to
Rs.500 Lakhs on October 18, 2017. Yes Bank Limited has fully written down AT | Bonds in their financial statements for year ended 31 March 2020. Axis Trustee,

repr it the Bondholders, has filed a Writ Petition in the Hon'ble Bombay High Court 1o seck a restraining order against the Issuer to unilateraily write down the bonds to
zcro. Subsequently, the H ble Court has directed that any action taken by Yes Bank Limited shall be subject to outcome of the writ petition. Since the matter filed by
Axis Trustee is pending in the Bombay High Court for further orders, and sufficient time has lapsed, the Management has taken a conservative view to write down the caming
amount of the bond of Rs. 100 Lakhs completely as on March 31, 2021,

The Company along with JBCG Advisors Private Limited (JBCG) had entered into a facility agreement as co-borrowers, of an amount upio Rs. 10,000 lakhs. The entire
facility was drawn down by JBCG. In addition to the sccurity provided by JBCG, the Company has provided identified Loan Reccivables in connection with its Supply Chain
Business of the Company. The facility is outstanding to the extent of Rs. 2,500 lakhs as at March 31, 2021. (as at March 3 1, 2020 - Rs 10,000).

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe and in India had o aficant impact on the global and Indian financial markets and slowdown in economic
activities.The Company has granted moratorium up 1o six months on the payment of instalments falling duc between March 01, 2020 and August 31, 2020 to all eligible
borrowers based on the Board approved moratorium policy read with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines dated March 27, 2020 and May 23, 2020 relating to ‘COVID-
19 - Regulatory Package’ and RBI guidelines on Assel Classification and Provisioning dated April 17, 2020.Further, period for which moratorium is granted has not been
considered for computing days past due (DPD) as on March 31, 2021. Extension of such moratorium benefit to the borrowers as per the COVID-19 Regulatory Package of the
Reserve Bank of India (RB1) and DPD freeze for such period, by itself, was not assessed/considered to result in significant increase in the credit risk as per Ind AS 109 for
staging of accounts. The Company had made provisions as per the adopted ECL model for impairment on financial instruments.

Currently, the Company has considered the moratorium, various other measures taken by Government and the DPD status from the end of the moratorium period and the
collection efliciency of the Company and accordingly have assessed that no additional provisioning on account of impact of COVID 19 is required as on March 31, 2021,
Further, the Company’s current view is that all other assets of the Company are recoverable. The impact of COVID -19 is dynamic, evolving and uncertain and impact
assessment is based on the current situation. However, the actual impact may vary due to prevailing uncertainty caused by the pandemic.

Hon'ble Supreme Court , in a public interest litigation (Gajendra Sharma vs. Union Bank of India & Anc) vide an interim order dated September 3, 2020 had directed that
accounts which were not declared NPA till August 31, 2020 shall not be declared as NPA till further orders. Accordingly, the Company did not classify any account which was
NPA as of August 31, 2020 as per the RBI IRAC norms, as NPA after August 31, 2020. Basis the said interim order, until December 31, 2020, the Company did not classify
any additional borrower account as NPA as per RBI or other regulatory prescribed norms afier August 31, 2020 which were not NPA as of August 31, 2020.

The interim order stood vacated on March 23, 2021 vide the judgement of the Hon'ble Supreme Court in the matter of Small Scale Industrial manufacturers Association vis
UOI & Ors. and other connected matters. In accordance with the instructions in paragraph 5 of the RBI circular no. RBI/2021-22/17 DOR.STR. REC. 4/ 21.04.048/ 2021-22,
dated April 07, 2021 issued in this connection, the Company has now classified the borrower account as per the extant RBI norms/IRAC norms and as per the ECL model
under Ind AS Financial Statements as on March 31, 2021.

In accordance with the instructions in aforementioned RBI circular dated April 7, 2021, and the Indian Banks Association (IBA) advisory letter dated April 19,2021, the
Company has put in place the Board approved policy to refund / adjust the interest on interest charged during the moratorium period of March 01, 2020 to August 31, 2020 to
eligible borrowers under the abovementioned circular and advisory. The Company had estimated the benefit to be extended to the eligible borrowers and created a liability
/credited the Borrowers account towards the estimated interest relief and reduced the same from interest income amounting to Rs. 20.71 Lakhs,

Disclosure as per the circular no DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated April 17,2020 issued by Reserve Bank of India on "COVID 19 regulatory package - Asset
Classification and provisioning” are given below
For the year ended March 31, 2021

i) Amounts in SMA/overdue categories where moratorium/deferment was extended in terms of paragraph 2 and 3 of the above circular* amounts to Rs.41,770.62 Lakhs
ii) Respective amount where asset classification benefit is extended : NIL
iii} Provisions made during year ended March 31, 2021 in terms of paragraph 5 of the above circular :

The Company has provision for impairment loss under ECL model for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Refer Note 52,53 & 53A above).
Further, the Company has considered the additional provisions for the purpose of RBI circular mentioned in this note for provision computation under IRAC Norms
as required under RBI Circular dated March 13, 2020

iv) Provisions adjusted against the respective accounting periods for slippages and residual provisions in terms of paragraph 6 of the above circular : NA
* Outstanding as on March 31, 2021 on account of SMA categories cases where moratorium benefit is extended by the Company up to August 31, 2020
** There are nil accounts as on March 31, 2021 where the asset classification benefit is extended for cases which were entitled to a moratorium until August 31,2020,
as the asset classification is based on the actual performance of the account post moratorium period is over




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notces (o the financial statements as at and for the year caded March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

54,

Dusing the previous year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has iy oked resolution plans to relieve COVID-19 pandemic related stress to cligible borrowers. The resolution
plans arc bascd on the paraincters laid down in the sesolution policy approsed by the Board of Dircctors of the Company and in accordance with the guidclines issucd by the

RBI on August 6, 2020. The staging of

and provisi

g for the

Lisihl,
13

Board approved policy in this regard.

accounts where the resolution plans are invoked and implemented in accordance with the

Disclosure as per the format prescribed as per the notification no, RBIZ2020-21/16 DOR.NO.BP.BC/3.21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020 for the period ended October

31,2021

Type of Borrower

where resolution
plan has been
implemented under
this window

accounts mentioned
at (A) before
implementation of
the plan

amount of debt that
was converted info
other securities

{Rs in Lakhs
(\) (B) ) (2] (E)
Number of accounts | [exposure to O(B) aggregate Additional funding |jincreasein

sactioned, if any,
including between
invocation of the
plan and
Implementation

provisions on
account of the
implementaion of
resolution plan
{Refer footnote

below)
Personal Loans - - - . .
Corporate Loans 727.91 - - -
Of which, MSMEs - - . - .
Others 1 830.01 - - -
Total 2 1,557.92 - - -

* As defined in Section 3 (7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

Disclosure as per the format prescribed as per the notification no. RBI/2020-21/17 DOR NO.BP.BC/3.21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020 on "Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprise (MSME) Sector - Restructuring of Advances” having exposure less than or equal to Rs 25 Crores for the period ended October 31,2021

(Rs in Lakh)

INumber of accounts restructured

I Amount

4.00 |

139.96

Disclosure as per the format prescribed as per the notification no. RB1/2020-21/16 DOR.NO.BP.BC/3.21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020 for the period ended October

3t, 2021

~

(Rs in Lakhs)

Type of Borrower

Exposure to
accounts classified
as Standard
consequent to
implementation of
resolution plan -
Position as at the
end of the previous
haif year (A)

Of (A), aggregate
debt that slipped
into NPA during the
half-year

|written off during

Of (A), amount

the half-year

Of (A), amonnt paid
by the borrowers
during the half-year

Exposure to
accounts classified
as Standard
consequent to
implementation of
resolution plan -
Position as at the
end of this half year

Personal Loans

Corporate Loans - - - - 2.,652.91
Of which, MSMEs - - - - -

Others - - - - 830.01
Total - - - - 3,482.92

Disclosure as per the format prescribed as per the notification no.

RBI/2020-21/17 DOR.NO.BP.BC/3.21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020 on "Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprise (MSME) Sector - Restructuring of Advances" having exposure less than or equal to Rs 25 Crores for the period ended September 30, 2021

(Rs in Lakh)

I Amount

INumbcr of accounts restructured

7.00 |

504.26

203, ettt
¢ 100; 0
ope- 3%
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes 1o 1he Bmancial statcments 53 5t amt for the y car enderd Mareh 1, 2022

{Cummy : Imbun Rupas i Libhe)

8. Regutatory disclovures - RBI
The fullowmg ahbitonal mioamatna s disdial i th ool Master Diatin - Non: Benking Fraam il Company « Systammally Irpontant Nos: Dyperat takmg Compagy and Doposd takng Company (Rowrve
Bank) Daravtiom, 2006 rand swbe Alaster Drtion DNBR. PO KL ILTER 00617 datad Saptomibey 81,2016 as ansmbad,

Thw ahdtaonal dischraste netes raguanad by the Rowrve Baink of Inha (RB1 2t propanad us Indian Acuounting Stamanb (ind AS) iaud by Muintey of Compueate Atfats (MCA), utdons wtherane staal
Ruyubastory dischovures have bovt e upto Outobey 11, 2021 punsaast BTA that the Company has quterad mito with Unity Snull Finance Bank, The Company has trsns Rrrad ds bavnes 1o Uty Saall Fisane
Band, Listed ("USFB”) as u going concern dy winy of shump tale Accordingh, the Compumy furs disconismucd i1s NBFC businets with cffoct from November ), 2021 To thal extent, # has mmoade the disclosute 1o
the stock exchange Resene Bank of Iiha ¢ RBI ) vicke 118 fetter dated Ovtobar 12, 2021 Bas ssind bankang Ivence to USFB 10 catns on the business of smal) finance bank, The ketter issued along with the Iwemce
Apetitios curtam comditnm, whoran it i spoaliod that the Company has o gt sl o Core Investnxnt Companry (CIC) with RBY, In winplance of 1 vame, the Company, vide its lettons datal Novonie
10, 2020 and Jamuary 13, 2022 has apphal for converann af the Company, ryrtoral o a Systamacally Imponant- Noa Dyt Accagpiing: Not Banking Fuuncial Company - Invesimant ad Cralit Company, o
i 2 Cory fovestinan Conmmpany. The application for ragstratmen of CFSL ay NBFC-CIC b undir progeress and thus, discdosuns as at March 31, 2022 have ot boun e,

581 Capital 1o risk asscts ratio {CRAR) Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 October 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
CRAR (%) NA 3.14% 30.69%
CRAR - Tier 1 capital (%) NA 23.713% 24.03%
CRAR - Tier 1l Capital (%) NA 7.42% 66T%
Amount of hybrid dobt raised as tier H capital NA 1L519.14 1,514
Amaount of Subordinated dobt raisal as tier 11 capital NA 5,327.46 S.01L5t
Amaount riisal by issue of papetual debt instranwts NA - -
Calculited as per RBI notification RBU2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC) CC PD No 109722710 166/2019-20 ~ Jmpl of Indian A " issucd by RBlon March 13, 2020,
“Tier Leapital”, “Tier 0 capital”, "Owsied fund™ are calcutatal as defined in Masier Disection - Non-Banking Fiancial Company - Systentically tmportant Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Dircctions, 20H6 and notification RBI2019-20/170 DOR BFC),CC.PD.No.109/22.10,106/2019-20 * ion of Indian A ing " issued by RBIon March 13, 2020,
Computation of CRAR fur March 31, 2022 has wot been dune as the Company has disc dits Tuuling operations w.e.f N ber 1, 2021 pursuant 10 BTA with Unity Small Finance Bank,
552 Investments Asat As at Asat
Mlarch 31, 2022 Qctober 31,2021 March 3t, 2021
1) Value of Investment
() Gross value of investments
) Inindia 2,756.86 5.900.27
(b) Outsicle Iubia - -
(i) Provisions for depreciation
{8) Inhulia 17.42 19.40
(b} Owutside Indlia -
(iii} Net value of investments
(@) InInclia 2,739.44 5.880.87
{b) Outside India .
1) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments.
For theear ended For the period ended For thyear ended
March 31. 2022 Octoher 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
Opening balance 19.40 8.18
Addl : Provisions made during the yoar - 1122
Less : Write-ofT/ write-back of excess provisions during the year (2.98) -
1742 19.40

Closing halance

553 Derivatives

The Company has not entered into any forward rate agreements, interest rate swaps, exehinge traded inerest rate derivatives, However Company have entered into Option Comtracts to hedge markat linked

debentures (For dutails reler Note 5).

Reg. No. 109463W
. 243, Cent:#Point Bidg,
180, 0. Ambedkar Road,

Ops. Bharat tia(2 Cinema,




Centrum Financial Services Limited

Notct 10 the Smancisl siatements 83 at amed for 1he ) car caded March VI, 2012

(Corrony : bubas Rupooy ;e Labihe)

84 Anset HahNity manapesoent

V) Maturity patiern of cortiain ficon of ascts and abilities as 1 Qctober I, 2020

Ad Assets
Imvestments Forciga Currency Aucts
1oy 7da 414028 -
Kdlay o 14ilays 1351.20 - -
15 day o WMER D by (One mionith) 2,100.42 - -
Ovir O months 10 2 numllie 205650 - .
Ovir 2 numiths up 1o 3 nuanhs RA43.69 X03.K2 -
Over 3 months to 6 ot 710310 14059 -
Qvir 6 monthy 10 1 year 1861434 637.61 -
Ower 1 yaar 1o X yaans 1553544 V56.42 .
Over 3 yuan o § yaare 1R46.78 . -
Ovar § yoans 7.928.60 100 -
TR kA 1] 2 i -
Adi Liahilitics
Borrowings & Debt Sccuritics Deposits # Forcign Currency
Liahiities
1 day 1o 7 days .37 - -
B day 1o 14 days 0.71 -
15 dlay to 331 days (One month) 22064 -
Over One momhs 1o 2 nuihs 4,243.63 - -
Over 2 months up 1o 3 nxwihs 7.226.63 - -
Over X months 10 6 months 5,087.65 - -
Over 6 months W | year 35,398.65 . -
Over 1 year to 3 years - 15,451.69 - .
Over 3 years 10 § yoars 1,557.46 - -
Over § yors 6,509.13 - -
75,703.52 : -
(8) ity i i inbiliti Lo
B.i Asscts
Loans Investments Forcign Currency Asscts
Fdayton 74 R,718.61 - -
& day 1o 14 days 2,491.67 - -
15 diay 10 30/3 1 days (One month) 6,536.6% 650.08 -
Over One months 10 2 momhs 902165 - -
Over 2 months up 10 3 months 8,104.46 -
Over 3 months 10 6 months 9,636.31 83.67 -
Over 6 months 10 1 year 9,795.17 1,251.81 -
Over | yaar to 3 years 19,178.82 1,539.68 -
Ovur 3 years to 5 yaars 3,333.44 - -
Over § years 543597 2,355.63 -
£2,312.78 5,880.87 -
B.ii Liabilitics
Borrowings & Dcht Sccuritics Deposits # Forcign Currency
Liabilitics
I dayto 7 days 6.55 - -
8 day o 14 days 3M.as -
15 dity to 30/31 days (One month) 237.83 -
Over One months to 2 months 1,810.04 - -
Over 2 months up to 3 months 414.68 - -
Over 3 months to 6 months ' 5,788.44 - -
Over 6 months to [ year 14,469.49 - -
Over | yeario 3 years 44,102.04 - -
Over 3 yeans 10 5 years 1,613.12 - -
Over 5 years 6,509.13 - -
75,252.67 - -

fieg. Na. 1094631y
253, CenirzPgi; Bidg,
, Dt dabegiar Road,
Bap. Buaiat Waie Cirems,
Lathzug. Parst,
Moratiai - 4




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notct 1o the Amancial statcomcnts as at and for the y car endod March 31, 2021

(Cormmy : huban Rapos o Lkie)

8.8 Eyporares

Esvevre te roal aatate vestor
As ot As at Asat

March 31, 2022 Octoher 3, 2021 March 31, 2011

3) Direct evposure

Revidential mortzazcs
Lanclyg fully sovurad by mongages on roudoiial propenty that 18 of will e ocoupeal by the borrowes . - .
of that t ronad( Dixdsihaal howang ks up 10 Re. 1S ok tiay be sbown separatudy)

Commcrcial real e3tate -

Landing sovral by momtgagos ont compnaial ral aostate (ofTice butklings, sl space, nultipurpose . 10,014.20 10,3725
comnxruiab prosases, multe-Ganuly kntral buiklings, 1 al prumises,

ncduninial or wandwuse spac, botads, L acquisition, developia amd comtnetion, de.). Exposurye

mchudes non-Juskd haved (NFB) s,

Investments in mortzage hacked sccuritics (MBS) and other sccuritised exposuy

- Rusidatial . - .
= Commvrcial Real Estale . - . .
1) Indirect exposure
Fuoud hised suml non- futkl basa! exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) amd Housing Finaove - -
Companies (HFCs)
<) Others - - .
- 10,014.20 1.372.90
-5 o
Exposure o capital market
Asat Asat As at
Darch 31, 2022 October 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
#) direct investment in wguity shares, ¢ ible bonds, u ible dub amt wmits of oyuity- - - 2,355.63
oniantal mutul fuds the corpus of which is not exchusivdy investal in lobt
b)) advimees against shires / bomds /7 debentures or otha seeuritics or on clean to individuals for - 2876.37 2,856.32
i in shares {including 1POs 7 ESOPs), ¢ ible boils, ity and units
of wquity-oriental imutual funds
¢} advanves for any otlkr whuoreslurs or ible honds or It or units - - -
of wuity oriented mutual fands are taken as primary seeurity.
Ay advanees for any othur puposes W 1he extont seeural by the collateral seourity of shares or - 2,766.90 2,550.27
[ ible bonds or ¢ ible deb of ubils of wyuity oricited mutual fumds i.c. where the
Pprimary security other than shares / conventible bosds / convertible debentires 7 wits of oquity
oniented mutuad fands ‘does not fully cover the advances,
¢} soeurext and q 1 kbroks and issucd on behalt of stockbrokers and - - -
market makers,
0 loans sanctioned 10 corporates against the seeurity of shares / bonds / debentures or other seeuritics or - - -
on clean basis for medting promoter’s contribution to 1he oquity of new companics in anticipation of
Taising resources
£) bridge loans to companics against expocted equity lows / issues - - -
h) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registerad and unregistered) - - -
1) athers (not covered above) - 2,755.87 2,893.86

- 8.399.14 10.656.08




Centrum Financlal Scrvices Limited
Notes (o the fimancial statcments as al and for the y car cnded March 31, 1021

(Curmmy * Indeas Rupaas m L)

5.6 Betaib of of parcet company prodd;

Drtants of finanung of panod company prskats: Nid Provess yor : Nil

8.7 Detaihs of ungle borroncr limit and borrower sroup Wit cvcoeded by the Compamy :
Dunng the penad ended Otobor 11 2021 and ihe vear endod March UL 2021 the Compam 's ¢radil cxposute 10 singke borrowers and grovp borronets nere within the limas prosenbyed by the R8I

K8 Untecured advances
The portfuln of Comguny o bixdos wrvouindd boan the doath of which ane providod in Note 7. Dunng the year, the Company has not given any advace agamnst collataral of nghts, oo, suthonty, (.
(Proviens ywar : Nil),

859 I from other fi ial sector reg 3
The Company 1 regiterad warh fothowngg other inancial vator ryulaton (Finamaal ngulatons as docnbal by Minitry of Finance):
0 My of Comporate AfTairs

S410 Duckenure of pesaliios ingunad hy RBS anxd ohur regulatons. RN (Prevaous year - Rs, Nily

5511 Related party transactions

Al puatenial transactions with ot panics are reflected in Noie 41

5512 Datinbs of sransaction with non executive dinctors - Rs. Nil (Previous year - Rs, Nily
Noa-Excutive Direvtors have no pocuniary relationship with the Company, excapt roeiving s. ~ Tor the meutings attonded,

5513 Provisions and contingencics

Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 Octoher 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
Breakup of provisions ani contingencics shown under the head other cxpenscs in the
Statement of Profit and loss
Ionpairment all anl v - (1.9%) 19
Provision towarnls Stage 3 - - 32722
Provision made towanls Income tax - - -
Provision for Stage 1/Stage 2 Assdts inchding restructure] iwd others - 26.%6 13,74
Other Provision at Contingencies * - (445.75) 215.70
*Other provisions and contingencics
Provision for grnuity expense - 19.92 34.76
Provision for leave aashmant expense - 1.2¢ 120
Provision Jor ESOP - {466.87) 133.74
Total - (445.7%) 215.70
55.14  Draw down from reserves
During the current year the Company has not drawn frons any reserve, (Previous year : NiSy(Refer note 22)
S55.15 Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPA asscts
! Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 Octoher 31, 2021 March 31, 2021

A, Concentration of advances
Tolal Advances 10 twenty Largest bormowers - 33,635.88 39,145.30
% of Advances 10 iwenty largest borrowers to Total Advances - 42.87% 47.01%

B.  Concentration of cxposures
Total Exposurcs 1o iwenty largest borrowers / Custoniers - 33,635.88 39,527.30
% of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / Customers to Total Advances - 4287% 46.79%

C. ncontrati PA Advan
Totat Exposurcs to top Four NPA Assats - 53347 1,280.12




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes 1o Ibc Bmancial statcwcnts 2% at 3ad for the 3 ear cmded March M1, 2021

{Currumy ; Indn Rupas m Lidin)

LA TY Concententinn of depmrin, advences, expasures and AP.4 gssets (Continned)

n Soctor-whie NPA Assoly % of NPA aswcts to Total Adsances in that sector
Asat At As

Sextons March 3, 2012 October 31, 2021 Maregh 31, 2021
Aprwubure & alliad st
MSME - 014% 0.05%
Corpvate hottowen . X6% 2.56%
Sarvian . . .
Crovaugad ks - Bill diseounting . 1.73% 0.36%%
Auto kans . . -
Other hans . - .

The amount of NPAs amd advaiees qonsidorad while calculating the above parcatage are cacdding nononal Tnd AS sdpustien.

E. Concentration of deposits
The Company is a Non Depasit A ing S Ity 1 NBFC. A Jing:! “ompany his not accepted any depasits during the cumant amd previous war. Also thare are o outstasding

dleposits from carier years (Provious Year @ Nil).

3507 Movement in non-performing asscts (NPAs)
The follawing table sets Torth, for the periods indicatad, e duails of moveman of Stage 3 assats vt of provision (Ako refes nore 7.b)

Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 Octoher 31, 2021 March 38, 2021
(i) Net NPAs to net advances (%) # 0.68% 0.96%
(i) Movement of NPAs (pross)
(@) Opuning batance . - 1.280.12 L9I6.RE
{h) Additions during the 82.59 30333
() Reductions during ihe yoar " 3 {661.32) (940.01)
() Closing balance - T01.40 1,280.12
(iii} Movement of net NPAs
() Opuning balance 53163 81538
(b)Y Addditions dusing the year Kkl 346
€} Reductions during the yoar (17.14) (285.21)
{0} Closing hatimee - S49.79 £33.63
(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on standard assets)
() Opening Balance 74649 LIot43
(b)  Adklitions during the year 49.29 45.13
(€} Write oft/ write back of excess provision (644.17) {400.08)
() Closing balance - 151,60 746,49

# The Louns in the mature of debentures (Refer Note 8) has been treated as Advances and accordingly considered for purpose of above disclosure of Movement in NPA's.

5518 Customer complaints For theear ended For thewar ended For thgear ended
Muarch 31, 2022 October 31,2021 March 31,2021

i) No. of complainis pauling at the begining of the yair Nil Nil Nil

ii) No. of complaints receival durng the year Nil | s

i) No. of complints rudressed during the year Nil 1 5

iv)  No. of complaints panling a1 the end of the year Nil Ni) Nil

55.19  Rating assigned by credit rating agencies

. - . Asat Asat
Instruments Credit Rating Agency October 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
Bink Loan Long-term* CARE CARE BBB+: Suble CARE BBB+: Stible
Commurcial Paper CARE CARE Al+(CE} CARE Al+(CE)
Comnxrcial Paper ICRA ICRA Al+(CE) ICRA Al+(CE)
Long Term Market Linked Debenturesi? CARE CARE PP-MLD BBB+. CARE PP-MLD BBB+.
Stable Siable
Pass Through Certiticates CRISIL CRISIL Al+(SO).CRISIL CRISIL Al+ (SO).CRISIL
Ad(SO) Ad(S0)
N ible D ing MLDs) CARE CARE BBB+: Stuble CARE BBB+: Stuble

Nate : *Oullook changed from CARE A- Negative to CARE BBB+ ; Stable on September 30, 2020
#Outlook changed from CARE PP MLD A- Negative to CARE PP-MLD BBB+; Stable on September 36, 2020
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency @ Indian Rupees in lakhs)

n
n

Regulutory disclosures - R8BI (Continued)

N
wn
—
&

Disclosurcs relating to assignment and securitisation

55.19.1 Disclosures relating to sccuritisation
Outstanding amount of Sccuritised as per the books of Sponsored SPVs
The information on sccuritization of the Company as an originator in respect of outstanding amount of securitized assets is given
below :

As at As at
Sr No Particulars October 31, 2021 March 31, 2021

a) Nu. o accounts sponsored by NBFC for Seccuritiz.. transaction* - 4,038.00

b) Total Amount of Sccuritized Assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored (Rs in - 5.000.00
I.akhs)

¢) Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on
the date of Balance Sheet

Oft-balance sheet exposures - -

- First loss - -

- Others

On-balance sheet exposures

- First loss - -

- Others - 750.00

d) Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR - -

Oft-balance sheet exposures

Exposure to own securitisations

- First loss - -
- Others - -

Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss - -
- Others - -

On-balance sheet exposures

Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss - -
- Others - 650.66

Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss - -
- Others - -

*As per the agreement of securitization transaction the loan pool of Rs. 5000 Lakhs is required to be maintained throughout the tenor of the
agreement. The no. of accounts might keep on changing to maintain the required pool.




Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

55.19.2  Outstanding amount of assigned assets as per books of the SPVs sponsorcd
The information on dircet assignment of the Company as an originator in respect of outstanding amount of’ assets assigned under
par structure is given below:
As at As at
October 31, 2021 Muarch 31, 2021
I No. of transactions assigned by the Company 93.00 4.00
2 Total amount outstanding 2,029.40 1,474.67
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the Company to comply with MRR as
(a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures
First loss - -
Others - -
(b) On-Balance Sheet exposures
First loss
tithers 202.94 326.41
4 Amount of exposures to assigned transaction other th..: MRR
(a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures
(i) Exposure to own securitisations
First loss - -
Loss - -
(ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
First loss - -
Others - -
(b) On-Balance Sheet exposures
(i) Exposure to own securitisations
First loss - -
Others - -
(i) Exposure to third party securitisations
First loss - -
Others - -
Total outstanding amounts and MRR as on the date of the balance sheet are excluding notional Ind AS adjustments.

No. Particulars

The information on direct assigninent of the Company as an originator in respect of outstanding amount of assets assigned under
premium structure is given below:

r. . F As at
S Particulars As at sa

No. October 31, 2021 March 31,2021

1 No. of transactions assigned by the Company - -

2 Total amount outstanding - -

3 Total amount of exposures retained by the Company to comply with MRR as
(a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures
First loss - -
Others - -
(b) On-Balance Sheet exposures
First loss - -
Others - -
4 Amount of exposures to assigned transaction other than MRR
(a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures
(i) Exposure to own securitisations
First loss - -
Loss - -
(i) Exposure to third party securitisations
First loss - -
Others - -
(b) On-Balance Sheet exposures
(i) Exposure to own securitisations

First foss - -
Others - -
(ii)Exposure to third party securitisations Reg. 2. 1093631
First loss * /. 283, Centr#Faint Bidy, - -
150; 07, &
Others o - A
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)

55.19.3

55.19.4

55.20

55.21

Disclosure as required under ‘Guidelines to banks/ Fls on salc of Financial Assets to Sccuritisation Company (SCy
Reconstruction Company (RC) (created under the Securitisation and Reconstruction of’ Financial Asscls and Enforcement of
Sccurity Interest Act, 2002)", issucd by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide its circular no. DBOD No.BP.BC, 96/ 21.04.048/ 2002-
03 on April 23, 2003, as amended from time to time and RBI Master Direction Non-Banking Financiat Company - Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking C ompany (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 1,
2016, as amended from time to time.

(A)  During the previous year, the Company has sold assets to an ARC on cash basis amounting to Rs. 1,042 lakhs (aggregate
consideration received), whose Net asset value in books (aggregate outstanding) was Rs. 622.85 lakhs. Net Gain on the
same amounted to Rs. 419.15 lakhs. ECL provision created on this loan assct amounted to Rs. 682.15 lakhs which got
reversed during the previous year .

Petails o tnancial assets sold to securitisation/recons.. - company for asset reconstruction
Particulars As at As at

October 31, 2021 March 31, 2021

] No. of accounts - 2.00

i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold - 622.85

iit) Aggregate consideration - 1,042.00

iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier - -

v) Aggregate gain/(loss) over net book value - 419.15

Please note, out of the above, one loan asset with aggregate outstanding of Rs. 680 lakhs was classifed as NPA, however another
loan account with aggregate outstanding of Rs. 625 lakhs was not classfiied as NPA in accordance with the interim order dated
September 3, 2020 passed by the Hon'ble Supreme Court , in a public interest litigation (Gajendra Sharma vs. Union Bank of
India & Anc). However, provisioning had been done basis Stage 3 classification in accordance with ECL policy of the Company.

(B) Further, the Company also sold collateral of one of the stressed asset and recovered it's dues during the previous year. The
aggregate consideration received was Rs. 572 lakhs and Net asset value in the books (aggregate outstanding) was Rs.
630.56 lakhs. Net loss on the same amounted to Rs. 135.07 lakhs. ECL provision created on this loan asset amounted to
Rs. 76.51 lakhs which got reversed during the previous year.

Details of assignment transactions undertaken by the Company

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
i) No. of accounts 93.00 4.00
it) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 2,044.23 3,322.77
i) Aggregate consideration 1,839.81 2,025.00
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier
v) Aggregate gain/(loss) over net book value 327.36 -0.99

Details of non-performing financial asscts purchased / sold by the Company
The Company has sold non performing assets during the year ended March 31,2021, (Refer note: 57.19.3).(Previous year : Nil)

Disclosure of Restructured Accounts
(as required by RBI guidelines under reference DNBS. CO. PD. No. 367/03.10.01 / 2013-14 dated January 23, 2014)
No loan have been restructured during the year except as mentioned in note no.-55. (Previous year: Nil)
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58,

5822

Regulatory disclosures - RBI(C ontinued)

Comparison of Regulatory Provision for NPA and Impairncnt Provision as per Ind AS as of October 31, 2021 (Refer Note No. 22)

Asset Classification . . Loss Allow ances Provisions required  Difference betwcen
Gross Carrying Anwunt (Provisions) as N N
Net Carrying Amount as per IRACP IndAS 109 provisions
as per 3s per Ind AS required under norms and IRACP norms*
as per RBI Norms IndAS 109 Ind AS 109
Performing
Standar ! Stage-1 4.0 172,45 73.938.13 1.348.49 1.176.04)
Stage-2 3.649.03 2010 3.629.54 83.32 (63.22)
Sub total 77,760.23 192.55 77,567.68 143081 (1,239.26)
Non Performing Asscts (NPA)
Substandard Stage-3 88.83 5276 36.07 8.88 43.88
Doubiful
up to 1 year Stage-3 . - - - -
103 Years Stage-3 156.82 98.83 57.99 156.82 (57.99)
More than 3 years Stage-3 455.75 - - 332.68 (332.68)
Sub total for Doubtful 612.56 98.83 57.99 489.50 (390.67)
Loss Stage-3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA 701.39 154.59 94.06 498.38 (346.79)
Loan in the Nature of Debentures Stage-1I 2,756.86 17.42 273944 239.39 2197y
Stage-1 76,867.44 189.87 76,671.57 1,587.88 (1,398.01)
Stage-2 3,649.65 20.10 3,629.54 83.32 {63.22)
Total
ota Stage-3 701.39 151.59 349.80 498.38 (346.79)
Total 81,218.48 361.56 80,856.92 2,169.58 {1,808.02)

*  During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the loans and advances held by the Company were transfered to Unity Small Finance Bank Limited (“USFB™), as required by the

RBI License issued on October 12, 2021,

As on the date of transfer, the Company held INR 1,808.02 Lakhs in impaitment reserve as required by RBI notification RBI/2019-20/170
DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22. 10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020. As on March 31, 2022, the Company does not hold any loans and advances.

The Company has grouped it under retained eamings for financial year ended March 31,2022. The Management has also sought ratification of the same from RBI vide a
communication dated March 30, 2022. This amount shall not be available for appropriation pending ratification by RBI.
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73 Rocutssaey dirclasnres - RBI (Continued)

Disclovwre on Hywidiny risk wader RBI clrewlar wa. RBU2019. 20100 DOR.NBFC (D} CC. No. 102/8),10.001/2019-28 datcd Noscmber o4,
1019 o Lieldity Risk Masagerent Frameword, for Now-Banking Fimascial Comspaamics and Core lusertment Companics from Masch 31,

2029 cumards
25.2%a Fuailing C haved on vigsifi (bot i dobt )
Avat
Particubry s at March M, 2028
October 31. 2021 ’
Ny of Segnithoant Comterporion® o X0
Aot 1 2an Likh e P 6y Rl 104
Farcentage of Raxhing concentration 1w otal depnils 0. ",
Pereentage o Rinding qoncentration 10 1o1a) tabiines 37T, REA A
“Nignilicant counterparty s as detinad -t e RUE 201920 8% DORNBFC (P0) CC.No 1 A1 2019-20 datad 4 Novamber 2019
0 Liguidity Risk Ay : oo D amvad Companies and Core inves “nie.
5823 h o
Leanie
882 Top 10 Borrow ings
Particnta Asat Asat
armenhin Octoher 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
+ et o P bty (8 m Jakhw 3401658 332492
Percentage of anmwunt of op 10 horrowings (o total horrowings H.86% 417
Funding hased on signil iny ent / product®*;
As at Octoher 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Tin lakh¥ % of Total liabilitics Tin lakiw * of Total liabilitics
a)  Marka linked non-convertle debentures 37985 H0a 37.649.00 4H4.52%
by Non Covartible iehentures 2H088.62 2R9% 240084 28.53%
o3 Pass Through Contificate . Ho0e, 4.302.23 5.09%
dy Perm Joon 3.960.25 4.62% 541539 6,400,
¢} Commercial paper 330017 3850 £50.00 1ote,
1) Hsbrid debt 1.500.14 1.76% 1.509.14 1L.78%
#) Bank overdran +993.11 5827, 1.424.59 1.68%%
“*Signiticant instrument:product is as defined in RBE Cireular RBE2019-20:38 DORNBEC (P1) CC No. j02 0310001, 201920 dated November

4. 2019 on Liguidity Risk M,
# Totat Liabilitics represents tota) liahi

k for Non-Banking T Companies and Core Investment Companies.
as per halanee sheet less total equity

35.23¢ Stock Ratios:
Particulars s at Asal
Octoher 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
i} Commercial Papers 1o Total Liabilities 3.85% 1.01%
i) Commercial Papers 10 Total Assets 2.85% 0749,
i) Commuscial Papers w Public funds*** 444% 115%
iv)  NCI{Original Maturity < 1y7s.) to Total Linhilities Nil Nil
v} NCD(Original Maturity < 1y75.) t0 Total Assets Nif Nil
i) NCEXOriginal Maturity < 1y7s.) to Public funds®** Nil Nil
vit) Other Short Term Liabilities o Total Lishilities ## 65.68% 29.40%
viii) Other Short Term Liabilities to Total Assets ## 48.56% 21.64%
ix}  Other Short Ferm Liabilities to Public Rinds*** j4 75.76% 33.70%
X)  Short Tam Assets o Tota! Liabilities 88.76% R7.61%
xi)  Short Term Assets 1o Short Term Liabilitics ##57 135.15% 208.01%
xii) Short Term Assets to Total Assels ### 65.63% 64.49%%

*** Public funds is as definal in Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Dircction, 2016,

# All the above numbers are excludin, g notiomal Ind AS adjustments,
## Other short term Hiahilitics inchude all the financial liabilities maturing within next 12 months other than Commercial Paper and NCDs

Short Term Assets inclwdes all the Financial Assets recoverable within aext 12 months

“The ahove ratios reflect the strength of the Company as the short term liabilities are adequately finded by short term assels indicating the financial
stability of the organisation.

55.23.1 Institational sct-up for linuidity risk management;
Centrum Financial Serviees L. by C ftee (A1CO). 2 level ittee 10 handle liguidity i
ouriigeman. The ALCO mectin re held at periodic intervals. At the apes Tevel. the Risk Managenen Conmumittee (RMUY. o sub-committes of

the Board of Directors of the Company. oversees the Hyuidity risk . The RMC sunawg [y updates the Bourd of Directors on the
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(Cumrency : Indian Rupees in lakhs)
56.0 Disclosures with respect to Core Investment Company
56.1 Componcnts of ANW and other related information

{(Amount in L.akhs)

. ASs at
Particulars March 31, 2022
i) |ANWas a % of Risk Weighted Assets . 82.34
ii) _|unrealized appreciation in the book value of quoted investments NIL.
iii) _jdiminution in the aggregate book value of quoted investments NIL
tv) |Leverage Ratio (times) 0.22

56.2 Investment in other CICs

Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at
artieutars March 31, 2022
) [Total amount representing any direct or indirect capital contribution made by one CIC in NIL
another CIC (including name of CICs)
b INumber of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect capital contribution NIL
exceeds 10% of Owned Funds
€)' [Number of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect capital contribution is less NIL
than 10% of Owned Funds
56.3 Off Balance Shect Exposure
. As at
Particulars March 31, 2022
i) |Off balance sheet exposure NIL
ii) |Financial Guarantee as a % of total off-balance sheet exposure NIL
ili) |Non-Financial Guarantee as a% of total oft-balance sheet exposure NIL
iv) {Off balance sheet exposure to overseas subsidiaries NIL
v) |Letter of Comfort issued to any subsidiary NIL

56.4 Investments

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

Value of Investments

(i) Gross Value of Investments
(a) In India 36,140.00
(b) Qutside India, -
(ii) Provisions for Depreciation
(a) In India -
(b) Qutside India, -
(iii)  |Net Value of Investments
(a) In India -
(b) Qutside India. -
() Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments.
0] Opening balance -
(i1} Add : Provisions made during the year -

(iii) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the wx—-—\ -

(iv) _ |Closing balance ZabH & N\ -
S

Y
N /
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Centrum Financial Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 3, 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Inkhs)
57, Regulatory disclosures - RBI (Continued)

571 Overseas assels
The Company did not have any Joint Ventures and Subswdiaries abroad as at March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: Nil).

§7.2 Reporting of Frauds
The Company has not reported any fraud during the current year ( Previous year @ NIL)

57.3  Previous Year Comparatives
Previous Year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary, to confinn to current year's classification,

As per our report of even date attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For SHAIl & TAPARIA Centrum Financial Services Limited
Chartered Accountanis
ICAI Firm Registration No.109463W

WM&\ \)\ -

Ramesh Joshi Ranjan Ghos Shailel Apte
Partner Managing Director and CEO Director™
MembershipNo.033594 DIN: 07592235 DIN: 00017814

’

A\ nhol|

Abhishek Baxi
Chief Financial Officer ompany Secretary

Mumbai Mumbai
May 30, 2021 May 30, 2021
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